
 

 

 
 
BSE Limited           September 23, 2023 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 
1st Floor, Dalal Street 
Fort, Mumbai 400 023 
 
 
Sir/Madam, 
 
Ref: Scrip code: 530431 
 
Sub: Notice to the Meeting of Equity Shareholders of Ador Fontech Limited convened as per  
directions provided in the Order of Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai Bench 
(‘NCLT’) in the matter of the Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) of Ador Fontech 
Limited (Transferor Company) with Ador Welding Limited (Transferee Company) and their 
respective Shareholders (‘Scheme’). 
 
This is to inform that by Order dated August 24, 2023, Hon’ble NCLT has directed inter-alia that a meeting 
of the Equity Shareholders of the Company be convened and held on Monday, October 30, 2023 at 11 
a.m. through Video Conference or other Audio-Visual-Means (‘VC/OAVM’) to consider and if thought fit 
{with or without modification(s)} to approve the Scheme of Amalgamation. 
 
In terms of the above referred NCLT order and in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013; Securities & Exchange Board of India Regulations, Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India and other applicable Legislations, Provisions, Rules, Regulations, 
Guidelines, Notifications, Circulars etc. as may be applicable, Meeting of the Equity Shareholders of the 
Company has been convened on Monday, October 30, 2023 at 11 a.m. and the Notice convening the 
meeting along with Statement under Sections 102, 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 
Amalgamations) Rules 2016 is enclosed. 
 
The Notice, Explanatory Statement (inter-alia providing the rationale of the Scheme) along with Annexures 
are being sent by electronic mode only to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company/Depositories/ Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) as on September 15, 2023. 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 and other provisions of the Companies Act, read with Rule 20 of 
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules 2014 (as amended), Regulation 44 and other 
provisions of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for 
providing e-Voting in respect of Meetings convened over VC/OAVM and in terms of the requirements of 
Secretarial Standards, the Company will be providing facility for remote e-Voting, prior to the Meeting and 
e-Voting at the Meeting in respect of business to be transacted at the Meeting. The Company has 
appointed M/s. National Securities Depository Limited (‘NSDL’) to provide the facility for casting of votes by 
the Members using remote e-Voting/e-Voting system, as well as to enable Shareholders of the Company 
to attend and participate in the meeting through VC/OAVM. 
 
Details for remote e-Voting is as under: 
 
Remote e-Voting Details 
EVEN 126841 
Commencing on 27th October 2023 (Friday) at 9.00 a.m. (IST) 
Ending on 29th October 2023 (Sunday) at 5.00 p.m. (IST).  
Cut off date for e-Voting 23rd October 2023 (Monday) 

 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
Detailed instructions for joining the Meeting through VC/OAVM, manner of casting vote through remote e-
Voting/e-Voting at the meeting and registration of email address of the Shareholders for the Meeting are 
provided in the Notice. 
 
The Notice is available on the website of the Company at www.adorfon.com at the website of NSDL at 
www.evoting.nsdl.com.  
 
Request to kindly take note of the above and acknowledge receipt. 
 
Thanking you, 
Yours faithfully, 
For ADOR FONTECH LIMITED 
 
 
 
 
Geetha D 
Company Secretary 
 
 
 

http://www.adorfon.com/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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I) PREAMBLE AND BACKGROUND

1. This Scheme of Amalgamation (hereinafter referred to as “the Scheme” or 

“this Scheme”) is presented pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 

and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) 

and the rules made thereunder (to the extent applicable) for the 

amalgamation of Ador Fontech Limited with Ador Welding Limited. This 

Scheme (as defined hereinafter) also provides for various other matters 

consequential to, or otherwise integrally connected with the above, as more 

specifically stated hereinafter. 

2. The brief background of various entities are as follows:

A) Ador Fontech Limited, (“Transferor Company” or “ADFL”) is a Listed 

Public Limited Company, incorporated under the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 1956, under CIN L31909KA1974PLC020010 and having 

its registered office at Belview, 7 Haudin Road, Bengaluru-560042, 

Karnataka, India. The Transferor Company was incorporated on 22nd

August 1974 as a Private Limited Company under the name and style of 

Cosmics Electronics & Ancillaries Private Limited. Subsequently changed 

its name to Cosmics General Engineering Private Limited and a fresh 

incorporation certificate was issued consequently upon the change of 

name issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on 07th December 

1979. Subsequently, the name of the Transferor Company was changed 

to Cosmics Fontech Limited and a fresh incorporation certificate was 

issued consequently upon the change of name by the Registrar of 

Companies, Mumbai on 21st October, 1988. Subsequently, the name of 

the Transferor Company was changed to ‘Ador Fontech Limited’ and a 

fresh incorporation certificate was issued consequently upon the 

change of name by the Registrar of Companies, Bangalore on 11th 
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September, 1996. The equity shares of Transferor Company are listed on 

BSE Limited. JB Advani & Company Private Limited and Promoters 

together hold 39.23% in the Transferor Company. The Transferor 

Company is engaged in the business of ‘Life enhancement of Industrial 

Components’ which inter-alia includes providing products, services and 

solutions for reclamation, repairs and maintenance.

B) Ador Welding Limited, (“Transferee Company” or “AWL”) is a Listed 

Public Limited Company incorporated under the provisions of the Indian 

Companies Act VII of 1913, under CIN L70100MH1951PLC008647 and 

having its registered office at Ador House, 6. K, Dubash Marg, Fort, 

Mumbai- 400001-16, Maharashtra, India. The Transferee Company was 

incorporated on 22nd October 1951 as a Private Limited Company under 

the name and style of J.B. Advani-Oerlikon Electrodes Private Limited. 

Subsequently it changed its name to ‘Advani-Oerlikon Private Limited’ and 

a fresh incorporation certificate was issued consequently upon the 

change of name by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on 27th

November 1968. Thereafter, the name was changed to Advani - Oerlikon 

Limited and then to ‘Ador Welding Limited’ and a fresh certificate of 

incorporation was issued on 09th September 2003, by the Registrar of 

Companies, Maharashtra, Mumbai. The equity shares of Transferee 

Company are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India

Limited (“NSE Limited”). JB Advani & Company Private Limited and 

Promoters together hold 56.90% in the Transferee Company. The 

Transferee Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing & 

selling of various products such as welding and cutting equipment, CNC 

machines, welding automation products as well as welding accessories.

The Transferee Company is also engaged in the business of Flares & 

Process Equipment.
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II) RATIONALE AND PURPOSE OF THE SCHEME 

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are engaged in similar lines 

of business and complement each other. With an intent to expand the business 

and achieve larger product portfolio, economies of scale, efficiency, optimization

of logistics and distribution network and other related economies by consolidating 

the business operations, the Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the 

Transferee Company proposed to consolidate the business of the Transferor 

Company with the Transferee Company. The proposed amalgamation of the 

Transferor Company with the Transferee Company would, inter alia, have the 

following benefits:

1. Enable the consolidation of the Welding business of the Transferor Company 

with the Transferee Company to create one of the largest welding and cutting

product manufacturer and refurbishment player in the industry.

2. Creation of a combined entity, hosting all products under the Transferee 

Company, thereby resulting in diversified portfolio of products, economies of 

scale, operational rationalization, efficiency of management, broader and 

deeper market presence and maximizing value for the shareholders.

3. Greater synergies between businesses and optimum use of manufacturing 

facilities, marketing strength, R & D facilities, optimized production, 

streamlining of supply chains, enhancing customer delight, brand 

strengthening and certifications resulting in productivity gains, thereby 

maximizing value for the shareholders.

4. Enable greater access to different market segments in conduct of its business 

and addition of new products in the portfolio would improve the competitive 

position of the combined entity.

5. Optimum use of infrastructure and organizational efficiency by pooling of 

financial, managerial, and technical resources, personnel, capabilities, skills, 

expertise and technologies of the Transferor Company and the Transferee 

Company, thereby significantly contributing to the future growth and 
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maximizing shareholder value.

6. Better financial leverage, resulting in greater efficiency in cash and debt 

management and access to cash flow generated by the combined business, 

which can be deployed more efficiently to realize higher profits/margins for 

the combined entity. 

7. Improved organizational capability and leadership, arising from the pooling of 

human capital, who have the diverse skills, talent and vast experience, to 

compete successfully in an increasingly competitive industry.

8. Cost savings because of standardization and simplification of business 

processes, elimination of duplication and rationalization of administrative 

expenses.

9. Reduction in regulatory and legal compliances and avoidance of multiple 

records keeping.

10. Strengthening ability to face increasing competitive, regulatory, 

environmental and global risks, thereby resulting in sustainable and profitable 

long-term growth for the combined entity. 

In view of the aforesaid, it is proposed to amalgamate the entire undertaking and 

business of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company. Accordingly, 

this Scheme of Amalgamation is formulated for the transfer and vesting of the 

entire undertaking and business of the Transferor Company within and into the 

Transferee Company, pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other 

relevant provisions of the Act.

III) Further, under the Scheme, there is no arrangement proposed to be entered into 

with the creditors, either secured and / or unsecured creditors of the Transferor 

Company and / or the Transferee Company. No compromise is offered under this 

Scheme to any of the creditors of the Transferor Company and / or the Transferee 

Company. The liability towards the creditors of the Transferor Company and / or 
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the Transferee Company, under the Scheme, is neither being reduced nor being 

extinguished, but shall be assumed and discharged by the Transferee Company in 

its ordinary course of business.

IV) PARTS OF THE SCHEME

The Scheme is divided into following parts:

Part I – Deals with the definitions of the terms used in this Scheme, details of 

share capital of the Companies, and Date of Operation of this Scheme 

Part II– Deals with the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the 

Transferee Company.

Part III– Deals with general clauses, terms and conditions, applicable to the 

Scheme.

PART – I 

Definitions, Share Capital and Date of Operation of the Scheme

1. DEFINITIONS

In this Scheme, unless repugnant to the meaning or context thereof, the following 

expressions shall have the following meanings:

1.1. “Act” or “the Act” means the Companies Act, 2013 and shall include any statutory 

modifications, re-enactment, or amendments thereof for the time being in force, 

and the rules and regulations made thereunder;

1.2. “Applicable Law(s)” means any statue, notification, bye laws, rules, regulations, 

guidelines, circulars or common law, policy, code, directives, ordinance, schemes, 

notices, orders, or instructions enacted or issued or sanctioned by any Appropriate 

Authority including any modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time being 

in force;  
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1.3. “Appointed Date” means 01st April 2022, or such other date, as may be fixed or 

approved by Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal or such other competent 

authority / Appropriate Authority; 

1.4. "Appropriate Authority" means any national, state, provincial, local or similar 

governmental, statutory, regulatory, administrative authority, agency, 

commission, departmental or public body or authority, board, branch, tribunal or 

court or other entity authorized to make laws, rules, regulations, standards, 

requirements, procedures or to pass directions or orders, in each case having the 

force of law, or any non-governmental regulatory or administrative authority, 

body or other organization, to the extent that the rules, regulations and standards, 

requirements, procedures or orders of such authority, body or other organization 

have the force of law, or any stock exchange of India or of any other country 

including the Registrar of Companies, Regional Director, Official Liquidator, 

Securities and Exchange Board of India, National Company Law Tribunal and such 

other sectoral regulators or authorities, as may be applicable; 

1.5. "Board of Directors" or "Board" shall mean the Board of Directors of the 

Transferor Company or the Transferee Company, as the case may be or any 

committee thereof duly constituted, or any other person duly authorized by the 

Board for the purpose of this Scheme; 

1.6. “Effective Date” means the last of the dates on which the authenticated copies or 

certified copies of the Order of NCLTs under Sections 230 to 232 of the Act 

sanctioning the Scheme is filed with Registrar of Companies by the Transferor 

Company and the Transferee Company. References in this Scheme to the date of 

“coming into effect of the Scheme” or “upon the Scheme becoming effective”, or 

Date;
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1.7. “IT Act” means the Income-tax Act, 1961, of India, including any statutory 

modifications, re-enactments, or amendments thereof for the time being in force; 

1.8. “NCLT” or “the Tribunal” means the National Company Law Tribunal, Bench at 

Bengaluru and Mumbai in relation to the Transferor Company and the Transferee 

Company, respectively. 

1.9. “New Shares" shall mean the shares of the Transferee Company, to be issued to 

the shareholders of the Transferor Company, in accordance with Clause 12.1.

1.10. “Parties” / “Companies” shall mean collectively the Transferor Company and the 

Transferee Company and “Party” / “Company” shall mean each of them, 

individually;

1.11. “Record Date” means such date, as may be mutually fixed by the Board of Directors 

of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company for the purpose of 

reckoning names of Equity Shareholders of the Transferor Company, who shall be 

entitled to receive shares of the Transferee Company, upon coming into effect of 

this Scheme; 

1.12. “Registrar of Companies” means the Registrar of Companies in Mumbai and 

Bengaluru; 

1.13. “Scheme” or “the Scheme” or “this Scheme” or “Scheme of Merger by Absorption” 

or “Scheme of Amalgamation” means this Scheme of Amalgamation, in its present 

form, submitted to the NCLT or with any modification(s) made under Clause 20 of 

this Scheme or with such other modifications/amendments as the NCLT may direct;

1.14. “SEBI” means the Securities Exchange Board of India established under the 

Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992.
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1.15. "SEBI Circulars" mean the circulars issued by Securities and Exchange Board of 

India in relation to the amalgamations and arrangements carried out under the Act 

and shall inter-alia refer to SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 

10, 2017 or SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 

dated 23rd November 2021, SEBI Circular dated 3rd January, 2022 and 1st February, 

2022, as amended from time to time. 

1.16. “Stock Exchange” means the stock exchange, where the equity shares of the 

Transferor Company and the Transferee Company are listed and admitted to 

trading, viz, BSE Limited for Transferor Company and Transferee Company and NSE 

Limited for Transferee Company; 

1.17. “Tax Laws” mean IT Act, Customs Act, 1962, Central Excise Act, 1944, Value Added 

Tax Act, applicable to any state in which the Transferor Company and / or the 

Transferee Company operate, Central Sales Tax Act, 1956, any other State Sales Tax 

/ Value Added Tax laws, or Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax or other applicable 

laws/ regulations dealing with taxes/ duties/ levies/cess.

1.18. “Transferee Company” or “AWL” means Ador Welding Limited having CIN 

L70100MH1951PLC008647 and registered office at Ador House, 6. K, Dubash 

Marg, Fort, Mumbai- 400001-16, Maharashtra, India.

1.19. “Transferor Company” or “ADFL” means Ador Fontech Limited having CIN 

L31909KA1974PLC020010 and registered office at Belview, 7 Haudin Road, 

Bengaluru – 560042, Karnataka, India. 

1.20. “Undertaking” means and includes all the assets, properties, liabilities and the 

undertaking(s) and entire business(s) of the Transferor Company, of whatsoever 

nature and kind and wherever situated, on a going concern basis, which shall 

include, without limitation the following:  
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i. all the assets and properties (whether movable or immovable, tangible or 

intangible, real or personal, in possession or reversion, corporeal or 

incorporeal, present, future or contingent of whatsoever nature, whether or 

not appearing in the books of accounts) of the Transferor Company, including, 

without limitation, sheds, godowns, warehouses, offices, plant and 

machineries, equipment, interests, capital work-in progress, rolling stocks, 

installations, appliances, tools, accessories, freeholds, leasehold or any other 

title, interests or right in such immovable assets, buildings and structures, 

offices, residential and other premises, furniture, fixtures, office equipment, 

computers and all stocks;

ii. all current assets including inventories, sundry debtors, receivables, cash and 

bank accounts (including bank balances), fixed deposits, loans and advances, 

actionable claims, bills of exchanges and debit notes of the Transferor 

Company; 

iii. all investments (including shares, scrips, stocks, bonds, debentures, debenture 

stock, units of mutual funds, overseas investments and other securities), 

including dividends declared or interest accrued thereon of the Transferor 

Company; 

iv. all rights or benefits, benefits of any deposit, receivables, claims against any 

vendor or advances or deposits paid by or deemed to have been paid by the 

Transferor Company, financial assets, benefit of any bank guarantees, 

performance guarantees and letters of credit, hire purchase contracts, lending 

contracts, rights and benefits under any agreement, benefits of any security 

arrangements or under any guarantee, reversions, powers, tenancies in 

relation to the office and / or residential properties for the employees or other 

persons, vehicles, guest houses, godowns, share of any joint assets and other 

facilities;

v. all rights to use and avail of telephones, telexes, facsimile, email, internet, 

leased line connections and installations, utilities, electricity and other 

services, reserves, provisions, funds, benefits of assets or properties or other 
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interests held in trusts, registrations, contracts, engagements, arrangement of 

all kinds, privileges and all other rights, easements, liberties and advantages of 

whatsoever nature and wheresoever situated belonging to or in the 

ownership, power or possession and in the control of or vested in or granted 

in favor of or enjoyed by the Transferor Company or in connection with or 

relating to the said Transferor Company and all other interests of whatsoever 

nature belonging to or in the ownership, power, possession or the control of 

or vested in or granted in favor of or held for the benefit of or enjoyed by the 

Transferor Company; 

vi. all permissions, approvals, consents, subsidies, privileges, income tax benefits 

and exemptions, accumulated tax losses, unabsorbed depreciation, minimum 

alternate tax credits, indirect tax benefits and exemptions, all other rights, 

benefits and liabilities related thereto including licenses, powers and facilities 

of every kind, nature and description, whatsoever, provisions and benefits of 

all agreements, contracts and arrangements and all other interests in 

connection with or relating to the Transferor Company; 

vii. all licenses (including but not limited to licenses granted by any government, 

statutory or regulatory bodies for the purpose of carrying on the business or in 

connection therewith), approvals, authorizations, permissions including 

municipal permissions, consents, registrations including import registrations, 

certifications, no objection certificates, quotas including import quotas, rights, 

permits including import permits, exemptions, subsidies, tax deferrals, credits 

(including Cenvat Credits, sales tax credits, Good and Service Tax credits and 

income tax credits), privileges, advantages and all other rights and facilities of 

every kind, nature and description, whatsoever, of the Transferor Company; 

viii. all agreements, contracts, arrangements, understandings, engagements, 

deeds and instruments including lease / license agreements, tenancy rights, 

equipment purchase agreements, master service agreements, loan license 

agreements, third party manufacturing agreements and other agreements 

with the customers, purchase and other agreements / contracts with the 



12

supplier / manufacturer of goods / service providers and all rights, title, 

interests, claims and benefits there under of the Transferor Company; 

ix. all application monies, advance monies, earnest monies and / or security 

deposits paid or deemed to have been paid and payments against other 

entitlements of the Transferor Company; 

x. all debts, borrowings, obligations, duties and liabilities, both present and 

future, whether provided for or not in the books of accounts or disclosed in the 

balance sheet of the Transferor Company, whether secured or unsecured, all 

guarantees, assurances, commitments and obligations of any kind, nature or 

description, whether fixed, contingent or absolute, asserted or un-asserted, 

matured or un-matured, liquidated or un-liquidated, accrued or not accrued, 

known or unknown, due or to become due, whenever or however arising 

(including, without limitation, whether arising out of any contract or tort based 

on negligence or strict liability) pertaining to the Transferor Company; 

xi. all intellectual property rights, registrations, trademarks, trade names, service 

marks, copyrights, patents, designs, goodwill, domain names, including 

applications for trademarks, trade names, service marks, copyrights, patents, 

designs and domain names, used by or held for use by the Transferor Company, 

whether or not recorded in the books of accounts of the Transferor Company, 

and other intellectual rights of any nature, whatsoever (including applications 

for registrations of the same and the right to use such intellectual property 

rights), books, records, files, papers, engineering and process information, 

software licenses (whether proprietary or otherwise), drawings, computer 

programs, manuals, data, catalogues, quotations, list of present and former 

customers and suppliers, other customer information, customer credit 

information, customer pricing information and all other records and 

documents, whether in physical or electronic form relating to the business 

activities and operations of the Transferor Company, whether used or held for 

use by it; and
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xii. any and all permanent employees, who are on the payroll of the Transferor 

Company, employees/personnel engaged on contract basis and contract 

labourers and interns/trainees, engaged by the Transferor Company, at its 

respective offices, or otherwise, and any other employees/personnel and 

contract labourers and interns/trainees hired by the Transferor Company. 

2. In this Scheme, unless the context otherwise requires:

a) Words denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa;

b) Headings and bold typefaces are only for convenience and shall be ignored for 

the purpose of interpretation;

c) Reference to the word “include” or “including” shall be construed without 

limitation;

d) A reference to a clause, section or part is, unless indicated to the contrary, a 

reference to a clause, section or part of this Scheme;

e) Unless otherwise defined, the reference to the word “days” shall mean calendar 

days;

f) Reference to a document includes an amendment or supplement to, or 

replacement or novation of that document; 

g) Word(s) and expression(s) elsewhere defined in the Scheme shall have the 

meaning(s) respectively ascribed to them; and

h) All terms and words used but not defined in this Scheme shall, unless repugnant 

or contrary to the context or meaning thereof, have the same meaning ascribed 

to them under the Act and other Applicable Laws.

3. DATE OF TAKING EFFECT AND OPERATIVE DATE

The Scheme set out herein in its present form or with any modification(s) approved 

or imposed or directed by the NCLT or in terms of this Scheme shall take effect from 

the Appointed Date but shall be operative from the Effective Date.
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4. SHARE CAPITAL OF PARTIES

4.1. The share capital of Transferor Company as on 31st March 2022, is as follows:

Subsequent to 31st March 2022 and up to the date of approval of the Scheme by the 

Board of Directors of Transferor Company, there has been no change in the 

authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Transferor

Company. The equity shares of the Transferor Company are listed on BSE Limited.

4.2. The share capital of Transferee Company, as on 31st March 2022 is as follows:

Subsequent to 31st March 2022 and up to the date of approval of the Scheme by the 

Board of Directors of the Transferee Company, there has been no change in the 

authorized, issued, subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the Transferee

Company. The equity shares of the Transferee Company are listed on BSE Limited

and on NSE Limited.  

Particulars Amount (INR)

Authorized Capital

5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 10,00,00,000

Total 10,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up Capital 

3,50,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2 each 7,00,00,000

Total 7,00,00,000

Particulars Amount (INR)

Authorized Capital

3,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 30,00,00,000

Total 30,00,00,000

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

1,35,98,467 Equity Shares of Rs. 10 each 13,59,84,670

Total 13,59,84,670
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PART – II

Amalgamation of Transferor Company with the Transferee Company  

5. Transfer and Vesting of Undertaking

5.1. Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed 

Date, all properties, assets, liabilities and Undertaking(s) of the Transferor

Company shall stand transferred to and vested in or deemed to be transferred to 

and vested in the Transferee Company, under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 

of the Act and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the Act and also in 

accordance with section 2(1B) of the IT Act, without any further deed or act, 

subject to existing charges or lis pendens, if any thereon, in favour of 

banks/financial institutions.

5.2. Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed 

Date, all immovable properties of the Transferor Company, whether freehold or 

leasehold, and any documents of title, rights, agreements to sell / agreements of 

sale and easements in relation thereto, shall stand vested in the Transferee

Company, without any act or deed done by the Transferee Company, and without 

any approval or acknowledgement of any third party. With effect from the 

Appointed Date, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to exercise all rights and 

privileges and be liable to pay all taxes and charges and fulfil all obligations, in 

relation to or applicable to such immovable properties. The mutation / 

substitution of the title to such immovable properties shall be made and duly 

recorded in the name of the Transferee Company by the appropriate authorities 

pursuant to the sanction of the Scheme by the NCLT and in accordance with the 

terms hereof. The Transferor Company shall take all steps, as may be necessary, to 

ensure that lawful, peaceful, and unencumbered possession, right, title, interest 

of its immovable property is given to the Transferee Company.

5.3. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, with respect to the 

immovable properties in the nature of land and buildings situated in India, whether 

owned or leased, for the purpose of, inter alia, payment of stamp duty, registration 
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fees or other similar taxes or fees, if the Transferee Company so decides, the 

Transferor Company and Transferee Company, whether before or after the 

Effective Date, may execute and register or cause to be executed and registered, 

separate deeds of conveyance or deeds of assignment of lease, as the case may 

be, in favour of the Transferee Company in respect of such immovable properties. 

Each of the immovable properties, only for the purposes of the payment of stamp 

duty, registration fees or other similar taxes or fees (if required under applicable 

law), shall be deemed to be conveyed at a value determined by the relevant 

authorities in accordance with the applicable circle rates. The transfer of such 

immovable properties shall form an integral part of this Scheme. 

5.4. All lease and license agreements, if any, entered into by the Transferor Company 

with landlords, owners, and lessors in connection with the use of the assets of the 

Undertaking, together with security deposit, shall stand automatically transferred 

in favor of the Transferee Company on the same terms and conditions, subject to 

applicable law, without any further act, instruments, deed, matter or thing being 

made, done or executed. The Transferee Company shall continue to pay rent 

amounts, as provided for in such agreement and shall comply with the other terms, 

conditions, and covenants thereunder and shall also be entitled to refund of 

security deposits paid under such agreement by the Transferor Company.

5.5. Without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing, with effect from the 

Appointed Date, it is expressly provided that in respect of such of the assets of the 

Transferor Company that are movable in nature and / or are otherwise capable of 

transfer by manual or constructive delivery and / or endorsement and delivery or 

novation, the same shall be deemed to have been so transferred by Transferor

Company and shall become the property of the Transferee Company, in pursuance 

of the provisions of section 230 to 232 of the Act, without any further act, 

instrument, deed, matter or thing.

5.6. In respect of movables, other than those dealt with in Clause 5.5 above, including 

sundry debts, receivables, bills, credits, loans and advances, if any, whether 
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recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received, bank balances, property 

development rights, investments, earnest money and deposits with any 

Government, quasi Government, local or other authority or body or with any 

Company or other person, the same shall on and from the Appointed Date stand 

transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company, without any notice or other 

intimation to the debtors (although the Transferee Company may, without being 

obliged, and if it so deems appropriate, at its sole discretion, give notice in such 

form as it may deem fit and proper, to each person, debtor, or depositee, as the 

case may be, that the said debt, loan, advance, balance or deposit stands 

transferred and vested in the Transferee Company).

5.7. Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed 

Date, all liabilities relating to and comprised in the Undertaking of Transferor

Company including all secured and unsecured debts (whether in Indian rupees or 

foreign currency), sundry creditors, liabilities (including contingent liabilities), 

duties and obligations and undertakings of the Transferor Company of every kind, 

nature and description, whatsoever and howsoever arising, raised or incurred or 

utilised for its business activities and operations, shall, stand transferred to and 

vested in or deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee Company 

under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Act, without any further act, instrument, deed, matter or 

thing.

5.8. The transfer and vesting, as aforesaid, shall be subject to subsisting charges, if any, 

in respect of any assets of the Transferor Company. 

PROVIDED always that the Scheme shall not operate to enlarge the security for any 

loan, deposit or facility availed by the Transferor Company and the Transferee

Company shall not be obliged to create any further or additional security in 

relation to subsisting charges, if any, thereof after the date of approval of this 

Scheme by the NCLT or otherwise.

5.9. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, all staff, workmen and employees, as 
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detailed under Clause 1.20(xii) above in relation to the Transferor Company, shall 

become the staff, workmen and employees of the Transferee Company, without 

any further act or deed to be done by the Transferor Company or the Transferee

Company.

5.10. Upon approval of the Scheme by the Tribunal, the Transferee Company shall, if so 

required under any law or otherwise, execute deeds of confirmation or other 

writings or arrangement with any party to any contract or arrangement to which 

the Transferor Company is a party in order to give formal effect to the above

provisions. The Transferee Company shall be deemed to be authorized to execute 

any such writings, on behalf of the Transferor Company to carry out or perform all 

such formalities or compliances referred to above, on part of the Transferor

Company. 

5.11. Pursuant to this Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee Company shall be

entitled to secure the record of the change in the legal ownership upon the vesting

of the assets of the Transferor Company in accordance with the provisions of 

Sections 230 to 232 of the Act. The Transferor Company and the Transferee

Company shall be jointly and severally authorized to execute any writings and / or 

carry out any formalities or compliance in this regard.

5.12. All taxes, duties, cess payable by the Transferor Company including all or any 

refunds / credit / claims pertaining to the period prior to the Appointed Date shall 

be treated as the liability or refunds / credit / claims, as the case may be, of the 

Transferee Company.

5.13. All the licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, registrations, incentives,

tax deferrals and benefits (including tax benefits), subsidies, concessions, grants,

rights, patents, claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties, special status and other

benefits or privileges enjoyed or conferred upon or held or availed of by the

Transferor Company and all rights and benefits that have accrued or which may 

accrue to the Transferor Company, whether before or after the Appointed Date, 

shall, under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Act and all other applicable 
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provisions of the Act, if any, without any further act, instrument or deed, cost or 

charge be and stand transferred to and vest in or be deemed to be transferred to 

and vested in and be available to the Transferee Company, so as to become, as and 

from the Appointed Date licenses, permits, quotas, approvals, permissions, 

registrations, incentives, tax deferrals and benefits (including tax benefits), 

subsidies, concessions, grants, rights, claims, leases, tenancy rights, liberties, 

special status and other benefits or privileges of the Transferee Company and shall 

remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions.

5.14. All the Insurance policies registered in the name of the Transferor Company, which 

are active as on the date of approval of the Scheme by the Tribunal and which can 

be transferred/assigned shall, pursuant to the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of 

the Act, without any further act, instrument or deed, be and stand transferred to

and vested in and or be deemed to have been transferred to and vested in and be

available to the benefit of the Transferee Company and accordingly, the insurance 

companies shall record the name of the Transferee Company in all the insurance 

policies registered in the name of the Transferor Company, so as to ensure that all 

the rights and privileges under all such policies available to the Transferor

Company and / or to any other person/director/employee of such Transferor

Company, whether in the capacity of the Policy Holder or Owner or Insured or the 

Beneficiary, as the case may be, be available to the benefit of the Transferee

Company and / or to any other person/director/employee of the Transferee

Company, as the case may be, on the same terms and conditions, as they were 

applicable to the Transferor Company concerned and upon such

transfer/assignment, all such policies shall be effective in favour of the Transferee

Company, as if instead of the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company had 

been a party or beneficiary thereto. However, for the insurance policies, which do 

not permit such transfer/assignment, the Transferee Company may make fresh 

application(s) to the concerned authority/insurance Company(ies) on such terms 

and conditions, as may be prescribed. It is hereby clarified that all the costs and / 

or expenses and / or premiums, in relation to the transfer/assignment/of the 
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insurance policies in the name of Transferor Company shall be borne by the 

Transferee Company and the Transferor Company shall have no further obligations 

in this regard.

5.15. All the brands and trademarks (including logo and right to use the trademarks) of 

the Transferor Company, including registered and unregistered trademarks, along 

with all rights of commercial nature including attached goodwill, title, interest, 

labels and brand registrations, copyrights, trademarks, and all such other industrial 

and intellectual property rights of whatsoever nature, shall stand transferred to 

and vest in and deemed to be transferred to and vested in the Transferee 

Company. The Transferee Company shall take such actions, as may be necessary 

and permissible to get the same transferred and / or registered in the name of the 

Transferee Company.

5.16. Upon approval of this Scheme by the Tribunal and with effect from the Appointed

Date, all existing and future incentives, un-availed credits and expenditures,

exemptions and deductions, benefit of carried forward losses and other statutory

benefits, including in respect of income tax (including MAT credit under the IT Act), 

excise (including Modvat / Cenvat), customs, VAT, sales tax, service tax, GST 

including the IGST input tax credit, CGST input tax credit and SGST input tax credit 

for the registrations of the Transferor Company in all the states, to which the 

Transferor Company is entitled to, shall be available to and vest in the Transferee

Company and deemed to be available to and vested in the Transferee Company. 

5.17. The Transferee Company shall file relevant intimations, for the record of the

statutory authorities signifying the transfer of the assets / properties including but

not limited to permissions, approvals, consents, sanctions, remissions, special

reservations, incentives, concessions, and other authorizations of the Transferor

Company.

5.18. It is hereby clarified that all assets and liabilities appearing in the books of account 

of the Transferor Company, as on the Appointed Date, which are set forth in the 

closing balance sheet of the Transferor Company, as of the opening of business 
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hours on the Appointed Date, shall be transferred to the Transferee Company.

5.19. The Transferee Company shall, under the provisions of the Scheme be deemed to 

be authorized to execute any such writings, on behalf of the Transferor Company, 

to implement and carry out all formalities and compliances, if required, referred to 

above.

6. LEGAL, TAXATION AND OTHER PROCEEDINGS

6.1. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme, all suits, actions and other proceedings 

including legal and taxation proceedings, (including before any statutory or quasi-

judicial authority or Tribunal or Court authorities, as the case be) by or against the 

Transferor Company, pending on the Effective Date, shall be continued and / or 

enforced by or against the Transferee Company, as effectually and in the same 

manner and to the same extent, as if the same had been instituted by or against 

the Transferee Company. 

6.2. If any suit, appeal or other proceeding, of whatever nature, by or against the 

Transferor Company is pending, the same shall not abate or be discontinued or in 

any way be prejudicially affected by reason of or by anything contained in this 

Scheme, but the said suit, appeal or other legal proceedings may be continued, 

prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferee Company, as the case may 

be, in the same manner and to the same extent, as it would or might have been 

continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Transferor Company, as if 

this Scheme had not been made. 

6.3. In case of any litigation, suits, recovery proceedings, which are to be initiated or 

may be intimated against the Transferor Company, the Transferee Company shall 

be made party thereto and any payment and expenses made thereto shall be the 

liability of the Transferee Company.
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7. CONTRACTS, DEEDS AND OTHER INSTRUMENTS

7.1. Upon coming into effect of this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this 

Scheme, all contracts, including contracts for tenancies and licenses, deeds, bonds, 

agreements, incentives, benefits, exemptions, entitlements, arrangements, 

escrow arrangements and other instruments, of whatsoever nature, in relation to 

the Transferor Company, to which the Transferor Company is a party or to the 

benefit of which the Transferor Company may be eligible and which are subsisting 

or having effect immediately before the Effective Date, shall be in full force and 

effect on or against or in favour, as the case may be, of the Transferee Company 

and may be enforced as fully and effectually as if, instead of the Transferor 

Company, the Transferee Company had been a party or beneficiary or obligee 

thereto.

7.2. The Transferee Company may, at any time after coming into effect of this Scheme 

in accordance with the provisions hereof, if so required, under any law or 

otherwise, execute deeds, confirmations or other writings, confirmations or 

novations or tripartite arrangements with any party to any contract or 

arrangements to which the Transferor Company is a party or any writings, as may 

be necessary, to be executed in order to give formal effect to the above provisions.

7.3. On the Scheme becoming effective, such contracts / escrow arrangements / deeds 

/ any other arrangements shall stand transferred to or deemed to be transferred 

to the Transferee Company, without any further act or instrument or deed and 

further it shall not be necessary to obtain the consent of any third party or other 

person, who is party to any such contract / escrow arrangements / deeds / any 

other arrangements. 

8. CONDUCT OF BUSINESS UNTIL AND AFTER EFFECTIVE DATE  

8.1. With effect from the Appointed Date and upto and including the Effective Date, the 

Transferor Company shall carry on and be deemed to have carried on its business 

and activities and shall be deemed to have held and stood possessed of and shall 
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hold and stand possessed of its entire business for and on account of and in trust 

for the Transferee Company;

i. All the profits or income accruing or arising to the Transferor Company or 

expenditure or losses incurred by the Transferor Company shall, for all 

purposes, be treated and deemed to be the profits or income or expenditure 

or losses (as the case may be) of the Transferee Company; and

ii. The Transferor Company shall carry on their business and activities with 

reasonable diligence and business prudence and shall not venture 

into/expand any new businesses, alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or 

otherwise deal with the assets or any part thereof except in the ordinary 

course of business, without the prior consent of the Transferee Company.

iii. The Transferee Company shall carry on their business and activities with 

reasonable diligence and business prudence and shall not venture 

into/expand any new businesses, alienate, charge, mortgage, encumber or 

otherwise deal with the assets or any part thereof except in the ordinary 

course of business, without the prior consent of the Transferee Company.

8.2. The Transferee Company shall be entitled, pending the sanction of the Scheme, to 

apply to the Central Government and all other agencies, departments and 

authorities concerned, as are necessary under any law for such consents, 

approvals and sanctions, which the Transferee Company may require to carry on 

the business of the Transferor Company. 

8.3. For the avoidance of any doubt and without prejudice to the generality of the 

applicable provisions of the Scheme, it is clarified as follows:  

8.3.1. With effect from the Effective Date and till such time that the name of the bank 

accounts of the Transferor Company have been replaced with that of the 

Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to operate the 

bank accounts of the Transferor Company in the name of the Transferor Company 

in so far as may be necessary. All cheques and negotiable instruments, payment 

orders received or presented for encashment, which are in the name of the 
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Transferor Company after the Effective Date shall be accepted by the bankers of 

the Transferee Company and credited to the account of the Transferee Company, 

if presented by the Transferee Company.  Similarly, till the time any regulatory 

registrations of the Transferor Company are closed / suspended and regulatory 

filings are required to be done on such registrations, the Transferee Company shall 

be entitled to do so to comply with the relevant regulations.

8.3.2. With effect from the Effective Date, the Transferee Company shall be entitled to 

use all packed / labeled goods, packing materials, cartons, stickers, wrappers, 

labels, containers, point of sale material, sign board, samples, brochures, other 

publicity material, etc. lying unused with the Transferor Company or their vendors, 

suppliers or third party or in their supply chain or distribution channel and which 

the Transferor Company is entitled to use under any statutes/ regulations, till such 

time as all of such stock is exhausted, without making any amendment on those 

goods or materials.

8.3.3. With a view to avoid any disruption of business, to ensure continuity of operations 

and exports and to maintain the same quality of products, with effect from the 

Effective Date and till such time all critical licenses, product registrations, 

marketing authorizations, permits, quotas, approvals, incentives, subsidies, etc. of 

Transferor Company are transferred, recorded, effected and / or perfected, in the 

record of the relevant governmental / regulatory authorities in all applicable 

jurisdictions in favour of Transferee Company, the Transferee Company shall carry 

on and be deemed to have been carrying on all the business and activities of the 

Transferor Company in the name and style of the Transferor Company and under 

the relevant licenses, product registrations, marketing authorizations, permits, 

quotas, approvals, incentives, subsidies, etc. of the Transferor Company. Further, 

during such period, the Transferee Company can procure or use or manufacture, 

all material and product including packed / labeled goods, packing materials, 

cartons, stickers, wrappers, labels, containers, point of sale material, sign board, 

samples, brochures, other publicity material, etc. in the name and form/format of 
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the Transferor Company. 

9. STAFF, WORKMEN AND EMPLOYEES

9.1. Upon the coming into effect of this Scheme, all staff, workmen and employees, 

who are on the payroll of the Transferor Company shall become the staff, 

workmen and employees of the Transferee Company, employees/personnel 

engaged on contract basis and contract labourers and interns/trainees of the 

Transferor Company shall become employees/personnel on contract basis, 

contract labourers and inters/trainees, as the case may be of the Transferee 

Company with effect from the Effective Date, on such terms and conditions as are 

not less favorable than those on which they are currently engaged by the 

Transferor Company, without any interruption of service, as a result of this 

Scheme. With regard to provident fund, gratuity, leave encashment and any other 

special scheme or benefits created or existing for the benefit of such employees of 

the Transferor Company, upon this Scheme becoming effective, the Transferee 

Company shall stand substituted for the Transferor Company for all purposes, 

whatsoever, including with regard to the obligation to make contributions to 

relevant authorities, in accordance with the provisions of applicable laws or 

otherwise. It is hereby clarified that upon this Scheme becoming effective, the 

aforesaid benefits or schemes shall continue to be provided to the transferred 

employees and the services of all the transferred employees of the Transferor 

Company, for such purpose, shall be treated as having been continuous.

9.2. The existing provident fund, employee state insurance contribution, gratuity fund, 

superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme and any other special scheme 

(including without limitation any employees stock option plan) or benefits created 

by the Transferor Company for its employees shall be continued on the same terms 

and conditions or be transferred to the existing provident fund, employee state 

insurance contribution, gratuity fund, superannuation fund, staff welfare scheme, 

etc., being maintained by the Transferee Company or as may be created by the 
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Transferee Company for such purpose. Pending such transfer, the contributions 

required to be made in respect of such employees shall continue to be made by 

the Transferee Company to the existing funds maintained by the Transferor 

Company. 

9.3. The Transferee Company undertakes that for the purpose of payment of any 

retrenchment compensation, gratuity and other terminal benefits to the 

employees of the Transferor Company, the past services of such employees with 

the Transferor Company shall also be taken into account and it shall pay the same 

accordingly, as and when such amounts are due and payable. Upon this Scheme 

becoming effective, the Transferor Company will transfer/handover to the 

Transferee Company, copies of employment information, including but not limited 

to, personnel files (including hiring documents, existing employment contracts, 

and documents reflecting changes in an employee’s position, compensation, or 

benefits), payroll records, medical documents (including documents relating to 

past or ongoing leaves of absence, on the job injuries or illness, or fitness for work 

examinations), disciplinary records, supervisory files relating to its staff, workmen 

and employees and all forms, notifications, orders and contribution/identity cards 

issued by the concerned authorities, relating to benefits transferred pursuant to 

this sub-clause.

9.4. The Transferee Company shall continue to abide by any agreement(s)/ 

settlement(s) entered into by the Transferor Company with any of its employees 

prior to Appointed Date and from Appointed Date till the Effective Date.

10. SAVING OF CONCLUDED TRANSACTIONS

The transfer and vesting of the Undertaking under Clause 5 above, and the 

continuation of proceedings by or against the Transferee Company in Clause 6 

above shall not affect any transactions or proceedings already concluded or 

liabilities incurred, or any liabilities discharged by the Transferor Company, on or 

after the Appointed Date till the Effective Date, to the end and intent that the 
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Transferee Company shall accept and adopt all acts, deeds and things made, done 

and executed by the Transferor Company as acts, deeds and things made, done 

and executed by or on behalf of the Transferee Company.

11. INTER-SE TRANSACTIONS

11.1. Without prejudice to the aforesaid Clauses, with effect from the Appointed date, 

all inter-party transactions between the Transferor Company and the Transferee 

Company shall be considered as intra-party transactions for all purposes from the 

Appointed Date and on the coming into effect of this Scheme, the same shall stand 

cancelled without any further act, instrument, or deed.

11.2. Further, it is clarified that the above clause has no impact, whatsoever, on any 

taxes in the form of income-tax, goods and service tax, service tax, works contract 

tax, value added tax etc. paid on account of such transactions. The taxes paid shall 

be deemed to have been paid by or on behalf of the Transferee Company and on 

its own account and therefore, the Transferee Company will be eligible to claim 

the credit / refund of the same and is also entitled to revise returns, as may be 

necessary, to give effect to the same.

12. CONSIDERATION

12.1. Upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the transfer and 

vesting of Transferor Company in the Transferee Company pursuant to Part II of 

this Scheme and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the Transferee Company 

shall, without any further application, act, deed, consent, acts, instrument or deed, 

issue and allot equity shares (“New Shares”), on a proportionate basis to each 

shareholder of the Transferor Company, whose name is recorded in the register of 

members, as member of the Transferor Company, as on the Record Date, as 

follows: 

“5 (Five) equity shares of AWL having a face value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up 

shall be issued for every 46 (Forty-six) equity shares held in ADFL having a face 



28

value of INR 2/- each fully paid-up” 

12.2. The equity shares to be issued and allotted pursuant to amalgamation of the 

Transferor Company with the Transferee Company, under this Scheme, shall be 

subject to the provisions of the Memorandum of Association and Articles of 

Association of Transferee Company and shall rank pari passu in all respects with 

any existing equity shares of the Transferee Company after the Effective Date 

including with respect to dividend, bonus, rights shares, voting rights and other 

corporate benefits attached to the shares of the Transferee Company.

12.3. The issue and allotment of the shares is an integral part hereof and shall be 

deemed to have been carried out under the orders passed by the Tribunal without 

requiring any further act on the part of the Transferee Company or the Transferor 

Company or their shareholders and as if the procedure laid down under the Act 

and such other Applicable Law, as may be applicable, were duly complied with. It 

is clarified that the approval of the members of the Transferee Company to this 

Scheme, shall be deemed to be their consent/approval for the issue and allotment 

of shares of the Transferee Company.

12.4. The New Shares to be issued by the Transferee Company shall be issued in 

dematerialized form to those members of the Transferor Company, as on the 

Record Date, who hold shares of the Transferor Company in dematerialized form, 

into the account in which shares of the Transferor Company are held or such other 

account, as is intimated in writing by the members of the Transferor Company and/ 

or its registrar, provided such intimation has been received by the Transferor 

Company and/or its registrar at least 7 (seven) days before the Record Date. All 

those members, as on the Record Date, who hold shares of the Transferor 

Company in physical form shall also receive the New Shares to be issued by the 

Transferee Company, in dematerialized form, provided the details of their account 

with the depository participant are intimated in writing to the Transferor Company 

and/ or its registrar, provided such intimation has been received by the Transferor 

Company and/or its registrar at least 7 (seven) days before the Record Date. If no 



29

such intimation is received from any member who holds shares of the Transferor 

Company in physical form 7 (seven) days before the Record Date, or if the details 

furnished by any member do not permit electronic credit of the shares of the 

Transferee Company, then the Transferee Company shall deal with the relevant 

equity shares in such manner as may be permissible under the Applicable Law, 

including by way of issuing the corresponding shares in dematerialized form to a 

trustee nominated by the Board of the Transferee Company (“Trustee of 

Transferee Company”) who shall hold these equity shares in trust for the benefit 

of such shareholder. The equity shares of the Transferee Company held by the 

Trustee of the Transferee Company for the benefit of the shareholder shall be 

transferred to the respective shareholder once such shareholder provides details 

of his/her/its demat account to the Trustee of the Transferee Company, along with 

such other documents as may be required by the Trustee of the Transferee 

Company. The respective shareholders shall have all the rights of the shareholders 

of the Transferee Company, including the right to receive dividend, voting rights 

and other corporate benefits, pending the transfer of equity shares from the 

Trustee of the Transferee Company. 

12.5. For the purpose of allotment of the shares, pursuant to this Scheme, in case any 

shareholder holding in the Transferor Company is such that the shareholder 

becomes entitled to a fraction of a share of the Transferee Company, the 

Transferee Company shall not issue fractional shares to such shareholder and shall 

consolidate all such fractions and round up the aggregate of such fractions to the 

next whole number and issue consolidated shares to a trustee (nominated by the 

Transferee Company in that behalf) in dematerialised form, who shall hold such 

shares, with all additions or accretions thereto, in trust for the benefit of the 

respective shareholders, to whom they belong, for the specific purpose of selling 

such shares in the market at such price or prices within 90 days from the date of 

allotment of shares and distribute the net sale proceeds (after deduction of the 

expenses incurred and applicable income tax) to the respective shareholders in the 

same proportion of their fractional entitlements. Any fractional entitlements from 
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such net proceeds shall be rounded off to the next Rupee. It is clarified that any 

such distribution shall take place only on the sale of all the fractional shares of the 

Transferee Company pertaining to the fractional entitlements.

12.6. On approval of this Scheme by members of the Transferee Company pursuant to 

Sections 230-232 of the Act and / or relevant provisions of the Act, if applicable, it 

shall be deemed that the said members have also accorded their consent under 

Sections 13, 42, 61 and 62 of the Act and / or any other applicable provisions of 

the Act and rules and regulations framed thereunder, as may be applicable for the 

aforesaid issuance of shares of the Transferee Company, and no further resolution 

or actions shall be required to be undertaken by the Transferee Company under 

Sections 13, 42, 61 or 62 of the Act or any other applicable provisions of the Act 

and rules and regulations framed thereunder.

12.7. In the event of there being any pending share transfers, whether lodged or 

outstanding, of any shareholder of the Transferor Company, the Board of the 

Transferee Company shall be empowered in appropriate cases, prior to or even 

subsequent to the Record Date, to effectuate such a transfer, as if such changes in 

the registered holder were operative as on the Record Date, in order to remove 

any difficulties arising to the transferor or transferee of equity shares in the 

Transferor Company, after the effectiveness of this Scheme.

12.8. The shares to be issued pursuant to this Scheme in respect of any equity shares of 

the Transferor Company, which are held in abeyance under the provisions of 

Section 126 of the Act or otherwise shall, pending allotment or settlement of 

dispute by order of Court or otherwise, be held in abeyance.

12.9. The shares to be issued by the Transferee Company, in lieu of the shares of the 

Transferor Company held in the respective unclaimed suspense account of the 

Transferor Company shall be issued to a new unclaimed suspense account created 

for shareholders of the Transferor Company.

12.10. In the event, any or both the Parties restructure their share capital by way of share 

split / consolidation / issue of bonus shares during the pendency of the Scheme, 
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the share exchange ratio, stated in Clause 12.1 above, shall be adjusted 

accordingly, to consider the effect of any such corporate actions undertaken by 

such Party.

12.11. If necessary, the Transferee Company shall, before allotment of the equity shares 

in term of the Scheme, increase, reclassify, and / or restructure its authorized share 

capital in such manner and by such amount as may be necessary to satisfy its 

obligation under the provisions of the Scheme in compliance with the applicable 

provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder.

12.12. The Transferee Company shall apply for listing of New Shares allotted by 

Transferee Company on the Stock Exchange in terms of and in compliance of SEBI 

Circular and other relevant provisions, as may be applicable. The New Shares 

allotted by the Transferee Company, pursuant to the Scheme, shall remain frozen 

in the depository system till listing / trading permission is given by the Stock 

Exchange.

12.13. The Transferee Company shall enter into such arrangements and give such 

confirmations and / or undertakings, as may be necessary in accordance with 

Applicable Law for complying with the formalities of the Stock Exchange and SEBI 

Circular.

13. ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

Upon the Scheme becoming effective and with effect from the Appointed Date, 

the amalgamation of the Transferor Company, with the Transferee Company shall 

be accounted for in accordance with “Pooling of Interest Method” in accordance 

with the principles laid down in Appendix C (i.e. Business Combinations under 

Common Control) of the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 103-”Business 

Combination” notified under Section 133 of the Act read with the applicable rules 

issued thereunder and as amended from time to time such that:

13.1. The Transferee Company shall record all the assets and liabilities of the Transferor 

Company vested in it pursuant to this Scheme, at the respective book values as
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appearing in the books of the Transferor Company.

13.2. The identity of the reserves of the Transferor Company shall be preserved and shall 

appear in the financial statements of the Transferee Company in the same form 

and at the same values as they appear in the financial statements of the Transferor 

Company. 

13.3. Pursuant to the amalgamation of the Transferor Company with the Transferee 

Company, the inter-company balances between the Transferee Company and the 

Transferor Company, if any, shall stand cancelled.

13.4. The nominal value of New Shares issued by the Transferee Company pursuant to 

clause 12.1 above shall be credited to the share capital account of the Transferee 

Company.

13.5. The surplus/deficit, if any arising after taking the effect of clause 13.1, 13.2 and 

13.4 after giving the effect of the adjustments referred to in clause 13.3, shall be 

transferred to capital reserve in the financial statements of the Transferee 

Company. 

13.6. In case of any difference in accounting policy between the Transferor Company 

and the Transferee Company, the accounting policies followed by the Transferee 

Company will prevail to ensure that the financial statements reflect the financial 

position based on consistent accounting policies and impact of difference, if any, 

will be adjusted against retained earnings of the Transferee Company.

13.7. The financial information in the financial statements of the Transferee Company 

in respect of prior periods would be restated as if the aforesaid business 

combination had occurred from the beginning of the earliest period presented in 

the financial statements, irrespective of the actual date of the combination.

14. COMPLIANCE WITH TAX LAWS

14.1. This Scheme has been drawn up to comply with the conditions relating to 

“Amalgamation”, as specified under Section 2(1B) of the IT Act and other relevant 

provisions of the IT Act. If any terms or provisions of the Scheme are found or 

interpreted to be inconsistent with the provisions of the said section at a later date 
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including resulting from a retrospective amendment of law or for any other reason, 

whatsoever, till the time the Scheme becomes effective, the provisions of the said 

section of the IT Act, shall prevail and the Scheme shall stand modified to the 

extent determined necessary to comply with Section 2(1B) of the IT Act and other 

relevant provisions of the IT Act.

14.2. On or after the Effective Date, the Transferee Company is expressly permitted to 

revise, its financial statements and returns along with prescribed forms, filings and 

annexures under the IT Act (including for the purpose of re-computing minimum 

alternative tax, and claiming other tax benefits), Service Tax law, VAT law, Goods 

and Service Tax law and other tax laws, and to claim refunds and / or credits for 

taxes paid (including tax on book profits, MAT credit and foreign tax credit) and to 

claim tax benefits etc. and for matters incidental thereto, if required to give effect 

to the provisions of the Scheme as per relevant applicable laws. 

14.3. All tax assessment, reassessment and recomputation proceedings / appeals 

(including application and proceedings in relation to advance ruling) of whatsoever 

nature by or against the Transferor Company pending and / or arising at on the 

Appointed Date and relating to the Transferor Company shall be continued and / 

or enforced until the Effective Date, by the Transferee Company. As and from the 

Effective Date, the tax proceedings shall be continued and enforced by or against 

the Transferee Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it would 

or might have been continued and enforced by or against the Transferor Company. 

14.4. Further, the aforementioned proceedings shall not abate or be discontinued nor 

be in any way prejudicially affected by reason of amalgamation of the Transferor 

Company with the Transferee Company or anything contained in the Scheme.

14.5. Any tax liabilities including but not limited to liabilities under the IT Act, Tax 

Treaties, Customs Act 1962, Service Tax laws, VAT laws, Goods and Service Tax laws 

or other applicable laws / regulations dealing with taxes / duties / levies allocable 

or related to the business of the Transferor Company to the extent not provided 

for or covered by tax provisions in the accounts made as on the date immediately 

preceding the Appointed Date, shall be transferred to the Transferee Company.  
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14.6. Any refund including but not limited to refund under the IT Act, foreign tax laws, 

Customs Act 1962, Service Tax laws, VAT laws, Goods and Service Tax laws or other 

applicable laws / regulations dealing with taxes / duties / levies allocable or related 

to the business of the Transferor Company, due to the Transferor Company, 

consequent to the assessment made on the Transferor Company and for which no 

credit is taken in the accounts as on the date immediately preceding the Appointed 

Date shall also belong to and be received by the Transferee Company.

14.7. All taxes including income-tax, minimum alternate tax, foreign taxes, custom duty, 

service tax, goods and service tax, etc. paid or payable by the Transferor Company 

in respect of their operations and / or on the profits of the business before the 

Appointed Date, shall be on account of the Transferor Company and, in so far as it 

relates to the tax payment (including, without limitation, income-tax, minimum 

alternate tax, custom duty, service tax, goods and service tax, etc.), whether by 

way of deduction of tax at source, advance tax or otherwise, howsoever, by the 

Transferor Company in respect of their profits or activities or operation of the 

business after the Appointed Date, the same shall be deemed to be the 

corresponding item paid by the Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings, 

be dealt with accordingly. Further, any tax deducted at source by the Transferor 

Company / Transferee Company on payables to the Transferee Company / 

Transferor Company, on account of inter-se transactions, which have been 

deemed not to be accrued, shall be deemed to be advance taxes paid by the 

Transferee Company and shall, in all proceedings, be dealt with accordingly.

Further, any goods and service tax paid by the Transferor Company / Transferee 

Company to the Transferee Company / Transferor Company, on account of inter-

se transactions, which have been deemed not to be accrued, shall be deemed to 

have been paid by or on behalf of the Transferee Company and shall, in all 

proceedings, be dealt with accordingly. 

14.8. All deductions, otherwise admissible to the Transferor Company including 

payment admissible on actual payment or on deduction of appropriate taxes or on 
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payment or tax deducted at source (such as u/s 40, 40A, 43B, etc. of the Income 

Tax Act, 1961), shall be available for deduction to the Transferee Company, as it 

would have been available to the Transferor Company.

14.9. After the Appointed Date, obligation for deduction of tax at source on any payment 

made by or to be made by the Transferor Company including but not limited to

obligation under the IT Act, customs law, goods and service tax law or other 

applicable laws / regulations dealing with taxes / duties / levies, shall be made or 

deemed to have been made and duly complied with by the Transferee Company.

Without prejudice to the generality of the above, all benefits, incentives, losses, 

credit for tax including on book profits, accumulated losses, credits (including, 

without limitation income tax, excise duty, service tax, applicable state value 

added tax, Cenvat Credit, goods and service tax credit, etc.) to which the Transferor 

Company is entitled to, in terms of applicable laws, shall be available to and vest 

in the Transferee Company on and after the Appointed Date, even if such credits 

have not been availed off in the books as on the date of transfer. Also, the 

Transferee Company will be entitled to avail Cenvat Credit / Goods and Service Tax 

Credit after the Appointed Date in respect of all duties / taxes where the 

documents are in the name of the Transferor Company. Further, licenses issued to 

the Transferor Company by any regulatory authorities, if any, and all benefits and 

tax credits, if any, associated with it shall stand transferred to the Transferee 

Company, upon the Scheme becoming effective.

15. DISSOLUTION OF THE TRANSFEROR COMPANY WITHOUT WINDING UP

Subject to an order being made by / under Section 230 to 232 of the Act, the 

Transferor Company shall be dissolved without the process of winding up on the 

Scheme becoming effective, in accordance with the provision of the Act and the 

Rules made hereunder.
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16. COMBINATION OF AUTHORISED SHARE CAPITAL

16.1. Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the Authorised Share Capital of the 

Transferor Company shall stand transferred, re-organised, credited and merged 

with that of the Transferee Company with payment of additional fees and stamp 

duty, if any, after setoff of the fees and stamp duty already paid by the Transferor 

Company and the Authorised Share Capital of the Transferee Company will be 

increased to that effect, by just filing requisite forms and no separate procedure 

shall be followed under the Act. Consequently, the Memorandum of Association 

of the Transferee Company, shall, without any act, instrument or deed be and 

stand altered, modified and amended pursuant to Sections 13, 61 and other 

applicable provisions of the Act. 

16.2. Accordingly, the words and figures in Clause 5 of the Memorandum of Association 

of the Transferee Company shall stand modified and be substituted to read as 

follows:

“The authorized share capital of the company is Rs.40,00,00,000/- (Forty Crores 

only) divided into 4,00,00,000 (Four Crores only) equity shares of Rs.10 (Rupees 

Ten) each with power to the Company to increase or reduce the capital of the 

Company and to divide the share capital for the time being into several classes and 

to attach thereto, respectively, such preferential, deterred, qualified or special 

rights, privileges or conditions, as may be determined by or in accordance with the 

Articles of Association of the Company and to vary, modify or abrogate any such 

rights, privileges or conditions in such manner as may be for the time being 

provided by the Companies Act, 2013, or any statutory modification or re-

enactment thereof for the time being in force or as provided by the Articles of 

Association of the Company”

16.3. The approval of this Scheme under Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 

shall be deemed to have the approval under Section 13, 61 and other applicable 

provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and any other approvals required in this 

regard. It is clarified that the approval of the members of the Transferee Company 
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to the Scheme shall be deemed to be their approval also to the alteration to the 

Memorandum of Association of the Transferee Company, as may be required 

under the Act.

PART - III

GENERAL CLAUSES, TERMS AND CONDITIONS

17. DIVIDENDS 

17.1. The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company shall be entitled to declare 

and pay dividends to their respective shareholders in respect of the accounting 

period commencing from and after Appointed Date and up to the Effective Date. 

The dividend, if any, shall be declared by the Transferor Company only with the 

prior written consent of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company.

17.2. It is clarified that the provisions in respect of declaration of dividends are enabling 

provisions only and shall not be deemed to confer any right on any shareholders 

of the Transferor Company and / or the Transferee Company to demand or claim 

any dividends which, subject to the provisions of the Act, shall be entirely at the 

discretion of the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company, subject to such 

approval of the shareholders, as may be required.

18. VALIDITY OF RESOLUTIONS

Upon the coming into effect of the Scheme, the resolutions passed by the Board 

of Directors and / or shareholders of the Transferor Company, as are considered 

necessary by the Board of Directors of the Transferee Company and which are valid 

and subsisting shall continue to be valid and subsisting and be considered as the 

resolutions of the Transferee Company and if any such resolutions have monetary 

limits approved under the provisions of the Act, or any other applicable statutory 

provisions, then the said limits, as are considered necessary by the Board of 
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Directors of the Transferee Company, shall be added to the limits, if any, under like 

resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and / or the shareholders of the 

Transferee Company and shall constitute the aggregate of the said limits in the 

Transferee Company.

19. APPLICATIONS TO THE NCLT

The Transferor Company shall make applications to the NCLT, Bengaluru Bench 

and the Transferee Company shall make applications to the NCLT, Mumbai Bench, 

since the registered office of Transferor Company is situated in Bengaluru and 

Transferee Company is situated in Mumbai, for sanctioning this Scheme under 

Sections 230-232 of the Act, for orders thereof, for carrying this Scheme into 

effect.

20. MODIFICATIONS/AMENDMENTS TO THE SCHEME

20.1. Subject to approval of NCLT, the Parties through their respective Board of Directors 

including any Committee of Directors or other persons, duly authorised by the 

Board of Directors in this regard, may make, or assent to, any alteration or 

modification to this Scheme or to any conditions or limitations or orders, which 

the NCLT or any other Competent Authority may deem fit to direct, approve or 

impose and may give such directions, as they may consider necessary, to settle any 

doubt, question or difficulty, arising under the Scheme or in regard to its 

implementation or in any manner connected therewith and to do and to execute 

all such acts, deeds, matters and things necessary for putting this Scheme into 

effect, or to review the portion relating to the satisfaction of the conditions to this 

Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those (to the extent permitted under 

law) for bringing this Scheme into effect. The shareholders approving the Scheme, 

shall be deemed to have given their consent to the proposed modification to the 

Scheme, without any further recourse to them.

20.2. If any part or provision of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason, 
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whatsoever, the same shall not, subject to the decision of the Board of Directors 

of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, affect the validity of 

implementation of the other parts and / or provisions of the Scheme. If any part 

or provision of this Scheme hereof is invalid, ruled illegal by any Court of 

competent jurisdiction, or unenforceable under present or future laws, then it is 

the intention of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company, that such 

part or provision, as the case may be, shall be severable from the remainder of the 

Scheme, and the Scheme shall not be affected thereby, unless the deletion of such 

part or provision, as the case may be, shall cause this Scheme to become materially 

adverse to the Transferor Company and / or to the Transferee Company, in which 

case the Transferor Company and / or the Transferee Company shall attempt to 

bring about a modification in the Scheme, as will best preserve for the Transferor 

Company and / or the Transferee Company, the benefits and obligations of the 

Scheme, including but not limited to such part or provision.

21. SCHEME CONDITIONAL ON APPROVALS /SANCTIONS

21.1. The Scheme is conditional upon and subject to:

i. Approval of Appropriate Authorities and receipt of ‘No Objection letter’ 

from Stock Exchanges, where such approval or consent is necessary; 

ii. the approval of the Scheme by the requisite majority of the respective 

creditors and such class of persons of the Transferor Company and 

Transferee Company, as required in terms of the applicable provisions of 

the relevant Act as well as any requirements that may be stipulated by 

the Appropriate Authority in this respect;

iii. the approval of the shareholders of Transferor Company and Transferee 

Company, through e-voting and / or other mode, as may be required 

under any applicable law and the SEBI Circular. The scheme is conditional 

upon Scheme being approved by the public shareholders through e-

voting in terms of Para 10(a) of Part I of SEBI Master Circular No. 
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SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated 23rd November 2021 

and the Scheme shall be acted upon only if votes cast by the public 

shareholders in favour of the proposal are more than the number of 

votes cast by the public shareholders against it.

iv. sanction of the Appropriate Authority, being obtained under Sections 

230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other applicable provisions 

of the Act, if so required on behalf of the Transferor Company and the 

Transferee Company; 

v. the necessary certified copies of the order under Sections 230 to 232 of 

the Act, and other applicable provisions of the Act are duly filed with the 

Registrar of Companies; and

vi. all other sanctions and approvals, as may be required by law in respect 

of this Scheme, being obtained.

22. BINDING EFFECT

Upon the Scheme becoming effective, the same shall be binding on the Transferor 

Company, the Transferee Company, Governmental Authorities and all concerned 

parties, without any further act, deed, matter or thing.

23. COSTS

All costs, charges, levies and expenses (including, but not limited to, any taxes and 

duties, stamp duty, registration charges, etc.) of the Transferor Company and

Transferee Company, respectively in relation to or in connection with or incidental 

to this Scheme or the implementation thereof shall be borne and paid for by the 

Transferor Company and Transferee Company respectively, unless otherwise 

determined by the Boards of Directors of the Transferor Company and the 

Transferee Company. 
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24. SEVERABILITY

24.1. If any part of this Scheme is found to be unworkable for any reason, whatsoever, 

the same shall not, subject to the decision of the Transferor Company and / or the 

Transferee Company, affect the validity or implementation of the other parts and

/ or provisions of this Scheme.

24.2. In the event of any inconsistency between any of the terms and conditions of any 

earlier arrangement amongst the Transferor Company and the Transferee 

Company and their respective shareholders, and the terms and conditions of this 

Scheme, the latter shall prevail.

25. PROPERTY IN TRUST

Notwithstanding anything contained in this Scheme, on or after Effective Date, until 

any property, asset, license, approval, permission, contract, agreement and rights 

and benefits arising therefrom pertaining to the Undertaking of the Transferor 

Company are transferred, vested, recorded, effected and / or perfected, in the 

records of any Appropriate Authority, regulatory bodies or otherwise, in favor of the 

Transferee Company, such Transferee Company is deemed to be authorized to enjoy 

the property, asset or the rights and benefits arising from the license, approval, 

permission, contract or agreement, as if it were the owner of the property or asset 

or as if it were the original party to the license, approval, permission, contract or 

agreement. It is clarified that till entry is made in the records of the Appropriate 

Authorities and till such time, as may be mutually agreed by the relevant Parties, the 

Transferor Company will continue to hold the property and / or the asset, license, 

permission, approval, contract or agreement and rights and benefits arising 

therefrom, as the case may be, in trust for and on behalf of the Transferee Company.

26. REMOVAL OF DIFFICULTIES

The Transferor Company and the Transferee Company through mutual consent and 

acting through their respective Boards, jointly and as mutually agreed in writing, may 
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give such directions (acting jointly) and agree to take steps, as may be necessary, 

desirable or proper, to resolve all doubts, difficulties or questions, arising under this 

Scheme, whether by reason of any orders of NCLT or of any directive or orders of 

any Appropriate Authority, under or by virtue of this Scheme in relation to the 

arrangement contemplated in this Scheme and / or matters concerning or 

connected therewith or in regard to and of the meaning or interpretation of this 

Scheme or implementation thereof or in any manner, whatsoever, connected 

therewith, or to review the position relating to the satisfaction of various conditions 

of this Scheme and if necessary, to waive any of those, to the extent permissible 

under Applicable Law; and do all such acts, deeds and things, as may be necessary, 

desirable or expedient for carrying the Scheme into effect.

27. EFFECT OF NON-RECEIPT OF APPROVALS

27.1. In the event if / of, any of the said sanctions and approvals referred to in Clause 21 

not being obtained and / or the Scheme not being sanctioned by the NCLT or such 

other appropriate authority, if any, this Scheme shall stand revoked, cancelled and 

be of no effect, save and except in respect of any act or deed done prior thereto, 

as is contemplated hereunder or as to any rights and / or liabilities, which might 

have arisen or accrued pursuant thereto and which shall be governed and be 

preserved or worked out, as is specifically provided in the Scheme or as may 

otherwise arise in law and agreed between the respective parties to this Scheme. 

Upon the termination of this Scheme, as set out in above clause, no rights and 

liabilities shall accrue to or be incurred by respective Parties or their shareholders 

or creditors or employees or any other persons. In such case, each party shall bear 

and pay its respective costs, charges and expenses for and or in connection with 

the Scheme unless otherwise mutually agreed.  

27.2. The Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company 

shall be entitled to revoke, cancel and declare the Scheme of no effect, if they are 

of the view that the coming into effect of the Scheme with effect from the 

Appointed Date could have adverse implications on the combined entity, post the 

amalgamation.  
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ANNEXURE-CANNEXURE-C1



To the equity shareholders of ADFL with 

respect to amalgamation with AWL.

5 (Five) equity shares in AWL having a face value of

INR 10/- (Rupees Ten) each fully paid-up shall be issued 

for every 46 (Forty-six) equity shares held in ADFL having a 

face value of INR 2/- (Rupees Two) each fully paid-up as on 

the Record date.





(Formerly known as Fedex Securites Limited)
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Systematix Corporate Services Limited
Registered Office: 206 - 207, Bansi Trade Centre, 581/5, M. G. Road, Indore - 452 001. Tel: +91-0731-4068253
Corporate Office : The Capital, A-Wing, No. 603 - 606, 6th Floor, Bandra Kurla Complex, Bandra (East), Mumbai -400051. 
Tel: +91-22-6619 8000 / 4035 8000 Fax: +91-22-6619 8029 /40358029 
CIN: L91990MP1985PLC002969 Website: www.systematixgroup.in Email: secretarial@systematixgroup.in

SEBI Merchant Banking Registration No. : INM000004224

May 31, 2022

The Board of Directors 
Ador Welding Limited
Ador House, 6, 
K. Dubash Marg, Fort, 
Mumbai 400001

Dear Members of the Board,

Sub: Fairness opinion on the Fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio Report issued on proposed 
Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger By Absorption) of Ador Fontech Limited (“Transferor 
Company” or ”ADFL”) with Ador Welding Limited (“Transferee Company” or “AWL”) and their 
respective shareholders under section 230 to 232 (hereinafter referred to as the “Scheme”) in 
terms of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”) and Master Circular on (i) Scheme of 
Arrangement by Listed Entities and (ii) Relaxation under Sub-rule (7) of rule 19 of the Securities 
Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 bearing no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 
dated November 23, 2021 (“Master Circular”).

Ref.: Our Engagement Letter dated May 26, 2022.

We understand that the Board of Directors of Ador Welding Limited has appointed Niranjan 
Kumar, Registered Valuer - Securities or Financial Assets as the “Registered Valuer” to value and 
determine Fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio in connection with the proposed Scheme of 
Amalgamation (Merger By Absorption) (hereinafter referred to as the “Scheme”) of Ador Fontech 
Limited (“Transferor Company” or “ADFL”) and Ador Welding Limited (“Transferee Company” or
“AWL”) and their respective shareholderspursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and 
other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, the
Scheme provides for the Transferor Company. The Transferee Company are engaged in similar 
lines of business and complement each other and with an intent to expand the business and 
achieve larger product portfolio, economies of scale, efficiency, optimization of logistics and 
distribution network and other related economies by consolidating the business operations, the 
Board of Directors of the Transferor Company and the Transferee Company proposing to 
consolidate the business of the Transferor Company with the Transferee Company.

Systematix Corporate Services Limited (“Systematix”), a SEBI registered Category I Merchant 
Banker having permanent Registration Number INM000004224 and also empanelled as 
independent valuer at BSE Limited (“BSE”) and National Stock Exchange of India Limited (“NSE”), 
has been appointed by the Board of Directors of AWL to provide “Fairness Opinion” pursuant to 
Regulations 11, 37 and 94 of the Listing Regulations and the Master Circular. 

Our opinion is subject to the scope, assumptions, exclusions, limitations and disclaimers detailed 
hereinafter. As such the opinion is to be read in totality, and not in parts, in conjunction with the 
relevant documents referred to therein. 

Annexure C1 ANNEXURE-C2
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I. SOURCES OF INFORMATION

The sources of information, which have been furnished to us by Companies, are as follows:

Discussion (including oral), draft and final Valuation Report dated May 31, 2022 issued by 
Niranjan Kumar, Registered Valuer Securities or Financial Assets (Registration No. 
IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137);
Audited consolidated financial statements of the Companies for the financial year (‘FY’) ended 
31 March 2021 (‘FY21’) and 31 March 2022 (‘FY22’)
Shareholding pattern of the Companies as at the Valuation Date
Information provided by leading database sources, market research reports and other publicly 
available published data.
Discussions with the representatives of the Company regarding the past, current and future 
business and other aspects of the Company in relation to the Valuation.
Draft Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger By Absorption)
Share Price details of the Transferor Company from BSE and the Transferee Company from 
NSE and BSE website.

In addition to the above, we have also obtained other necessary explanations and information, 
which we believed were relevant to the present exercise, from the management of AWL and ADFL. 

II. SCOPE, LIMITATIONS, ASSUMPTIONS, EXCLUSIONS AND DISCLAIMERS 

Our Opinion and analysis are limited to the extent of review of the documents as provided to us 
and described above. 

We have relied upon the accuracy and completeness of all information and documents provided 
to us, without carrying out any due diligence or independent verification or validation of such 
information to establish its accuracy or sufficiency. We have not reviewed any financial forecasts 
relating to the Transferor and the Transferee companies since the same were not provided to us 
by the board of directors of the Transferor and the Transferee companies considering price 
sensitive nature. We have not conducted any independent valuation or appraisal of any of the 
assets or liabilities of the Companies. We do not express any opinion as to the value of any asset 
of Companies involved in the Scheme, whether at current prices or in the future. 

We do not express any opinion as to the price at which shares of the AWL and ADFL may trade at 
any time, including after the date of this opinion. In rendering our opinion, we have assumed, that   
the Scheme will be implemented on the terms described therein, without any waiver or 
modification of any material terms or conditions, and that in the course of obtaining the necessary 
regulatory or third party approvals for the Scheme, no delay, limitation, restriction  or condition 
will be imposed that would have an adverse effect on Companies and  their respective 
shareholders.

We do not express any opinion as to any tax or other consequences that might arise from the 
Scheme, nor does our opinion address any legal, tax, regulatory or accounting matters, as to which  
we  understand   that   the Companies have obtained such advice as it deemed necessary from 
qualified professionals. 
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We assume no responsibility for updating or revising our opinion based on circumstances or 
events occurring after the date hereof.  Our opinion is specific to the Scheme as contemplated in 
the Scheme provided to us and is not valid for any other purpose.

We may currently or in the future provide, investment banking services to AWL and ADFL and/or 
its subsidiaries or their respective affiliates that are unrelated to the proposed Scheme, for which 
may receive customary fees. In addition, in the ordinary course of their respective businesses, 
affiliates of Systematix may actively trade in the securities of the AWL and ADFL on behalf of their 
customers and, accordingly, may at any time hold a position in such securities. Our engagement 
and the opinion expressed herein are for the use of the Board of Directors of AWL and ADFL in 
connection with the consideration of the Scheme and for none other. Neither Systematix, nor its 
affiliates, partners, directors, shareholders, managers, employees or agents of any of them, makes 
any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the information and documents 
provided to us, based on which the opinion has been issued. All such parties and entities expressly 
disclaim any and all liability for or based on or relating to any such information contained therein.

Our opinion is not intended to and does not constitute a recommendation to any shareholder as 
to how such holder should vote or act in connection with the Scheme or any matter related 
thereto.

This report may be submitted to the Stock Exchange, SEBI, the National Company Law Tribunal
(NCLT) and such other statutory and regulatory authorities from whom approval is required under 
applicable law. The report may also be disclosed on the website of AWL and ADFL and made 
available to the respective shareholders and creditors in connection with the approval process for 
the Scheme.

The fee for this engagement is not contingent upon the results of this report.

III. BACKGROUND OF THE COMPANIES

Ador Welding Limited (“Transferee Company” or “AWL")

AWL is a Public Limited Company incorporated under the provisions of the Indian Companies Act 
VII of 1913, under CIN L70100MH1951PLC008647 and having its registered office at Ador House, 
6. K, Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai- 400 001, Maharashtra, India. The Transferee Company was 
incorporated on October 22, 1951 as a Private Limited Company under the name and style of J.B. 
Advani-Oerlikon Electrodes Private Limited. Subsequently it changed its name to ‘Advani-Oerlikon 
Private Limited’ and a fresh incorporation certificate was issued consequent upon the change of 
name issued by the Registrar of companies, Mumbai on November 27,1968. Thereafter, the name 
was changed Advani -Oerlikon Limited and then to ‘Ador Welding Limited’ and a fresh certificate 
of incorporation was issued on September 09 2003, by the Registrar of Companies, Maharashtra, 
Mumbai. The equity shares of Transferee Company are listed on BSE Limited and National Stock 
Exchange of India Limited. JB Advani & Company Private Limited (“JB Advani”) and Promoters 
together hold 56.90% in the Transferee Company. 
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The Transferee Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing & selling of various products 
such as welding and cutting equipment, CNC machines, welding automation products as well as 
welding accessories. The Transferee Company is also engaged in the business of Flares & Process 
Equipment.

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Percentage (%)
Promoter & Promoter Group
Individuals 937,181 6.9%
JB Advani 6,800,531 50.0%
Public
Others 5,860,755 43.1%
Total no. of equity shares outstanding 13,598,467 100.0%

Ador Fontech Limited (“Transferor Company” or “ADFL”)

Ador Fontech Limited is a Public Limited Company, incorporated under the provisions of the 
Companies Act, 1956, under CIN L31909KA1974PLC020010 and having its registered office at 
Belview, 7 Haudin Road, Bengaluru-560042, Karnataka, India. The Transferor Company was 
incorporated on August 22, 1974 as a Private Limited Company under the name and style of 
Cosmics Electronics & Ancillaries Private Limited. Subsequently changed its name to Cosmics 
General Engineering Private Limited and a fresh incorporation certificate was issued consequent 
upon the change of name issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on December 07, 1979. 
Subsequently changed its name to Cosmics Fontech Limited and a fresh incorporation certificate 
was issued consequent upon the change of name issued by the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai 
on  October 21, 1988. Subsequently it changed its name to ‘Ador Fontech Limited’ and a fresh 
incorporation certificate was issued, consequent upon the change of name, by the Registrar of 
Companies, Bangalore on September 11, 1996. The equity shares of Transferor Company are 
listed on BSE Limited. JB Advani & Company Private Limited (“JB Advani”) and Promoters together 
hold 39.23% in the Transferor Company. 

The Transferor Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and providing industries a 
comprehensive range of Low Heat Input Welding Alloys, Flux Cored Welding Wires, Thermal 
Coating Alloy Powders, and the associated equipment, used with the relevant reclamation and 
surfacing processes.

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Percentage (%)
Promoter & Promoter Group
Individuals 4,515,763 12.9%
JB Advani 9,213,301 26.3%
Public
Others 21,270,936 60.8%
Total no. of equity shares outstanding 35,000,000 100.0%



99

IV. RECOMMENATION OF THE REGISTERED VALUER

As stated above, we have reviewed copy of the Valuation Report dated May 31, 2022 issued by
the Registered Valuer proposing the following Fair Equity Share Exchange Ratio for equity shares 
to be issued by the AWL to the Equity Shareholders of the ADFL:

“5 (five) equity shares of AWL of INR 10/- fully paid up for every 46 (Forty-Six) equity shares of 
ADFL of INR 2/- each fully paid up”

V. OUR COMMENT ON PROPOSED FAIR EQUITY SHARE EXCHANGE RATIOS

Our fairness opinion has been prepared based on the reports provided by the Registered Valuer 
and our exercise of the various qualitative factors relevant to Companies, having regard to 
information base, Management representations, key underlying assumptions and limitations.

On consideration of all the relevant factors and circumstances, we believe that the Fair Equity 
Share Exchange Ratio determined by the Registered Valuer is fair for the shareholders of AWL and 
ADFL including from a financial standpoint. 

Thanking you. 

For Systematix Corporate Services Limited
(SEBI Registration No. INM000004224) 

Amit Kumar
Director, Investment Banking
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DCS/AMAL/TL/IP/2497/2022-23   “E-Letter”              September 26, 2022 

The Company Secretary, 
ADOR FONTECH LTD.    
Belview 7 Haudin Road, Bengaluru, 
Karnataka, 560042 

Dear Sir, 

Sub: Observation Letter regarding Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) of Ador Fontech 
Limited with Ador Welding Limited and their respective Shareholders  

We are in receipt of the draft Scheme of Amalgamation filed by Ador Fontech Limited as required under SEBI 
Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017; SEBI vide its letter dated September 26, 2022, has 
inter alia given the following comment(s) on the draft scheme of Amalgamation:  

a) “Company shall ensure that it discloses all details of ongoing adjudication & recovery 
proceedings, prosecution initiated, and all other enforcement action taken, if any, against the 
Company, its promoters and directors, before Hon'ble NCLT and Shareholders, while seeking 
approval of the scheme.”

b) “Company shall ensure that additional information and undertakings, if any, submitted by the 
Company, after filing the scheme with the Stock Exchange, and from the date of receipt of this 
letter, is displayed on the websites of the listed Company and the Stock Exchanges.”   

c) “Company shall ensure compliance with the SEBI Circulars issued from time to time.”

d) “The entities involved in the scheme shall duly comply with various provisions of the Circular.”

e) “Company is advised that the information pertaining to all the Unlisted Companies involved in the 
Scheme shall be included in the format specified for abridged prospectus as provided in Part E 
of Schedule VI of the ICDR Regulations, 2018, in the explanatory statement or notice or proposal 
accompanying resolution to be passed, which is sent to the shareholders for seeking approval.”

f) “Company shall ensure that the financials in the scheme including financials considered for 
valuation report are not for period more than 6 months old.”

g) “Company is advised that the details of the proposed Scheme under consideration as provided 
by the Company to the Stock Exchange shall be prominently disclosed in the notice sent to the 
Shareholders.”

h) “Company is advised that the proposed Equity Shares to be issued in terms of the ‘Scheme’ shall 
mandatorily be in demat form only.”

i) “Company shall ensure that the ‘Scheme’ shall be acted upon subject to the applicant complying 
with the relevant clauses mentioned in the scheme document.”

j) “Company to ensure that no changes to the draft Scheme except those mandated by the 
regulators/ authorities / tribunals shall be made without specific written consent of SEBI.”

ANNEXURE-D
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k) “Company is advised that the observations of SEBI/Stock Exchanges shall be incorporated in the 
petition to be filed before Hon'ble NCLT and the Company obliged to bring the observations to 
the notice of Hon'ble NCLT.”

l) “Company is advised to comply with all the applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, 
rule and regulations issued thereunder including obtaining the consent from the creditors for the 
proposed scheme.”

m) “It is to be noted that the petitions are filed by the Company before Hon'ble NCLT after processing 
and communication of comments/observations on draft Scheme by SEBI/Stock Exchange. Hence, 
the Company is not required to send notice for representation as mandated under section 230(5) 
of Companies Act, 2013 to SEBI again for its comments/observations/representations.”

Accordingly, based on aforesaid comment offered by SEBI, the company is hereby advised: 

i. To provide additional information, if any, (as stated above) along with various documents to the 
Exchange for further dissemination on Exchange website. 

ii. To ensure that additional information, if any, (as stated aforesaid) along with various documents 
are disseminated on their (company) website. 

iii. To duly comply with various provisions of the circulars. 

In light of the above, we hereby advise that we have no adverse observations with limited reference to those 
matters having a bearing on listing/de-listing/continuous listing requirements within the provisions of Listing 
Agreement, so as to enable the company to file the scheme with Hon’ble NCLT.

Further, where applicable in the explanatory statement of the notice to be sent by the company to the 
shareholders, while seeking approval of the scheme, it shall disclose information about unlisted company involved 
in the format prescribed for abridged prospectus as specified in the circular dated March 10, 2017.  

Kindly   note   that   as   required   under Regulation 37(3) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the validity of this Observation Letter shall be six months from the date of this 
Letter, within which the scheme shall be submitted to the NCLT.  

The Exchange reserves its right to withdraw its ‘No adverse observation’ at any stage if the information submitted 
to the Exchange is found to be incomplete / incorrect / misleading / false or for any contravention of Rules, Bye-
laws and Regulations of the Exchange, Listing Agreement, Guidelines/Regulations issued by statutory authorities. 
Please note that the aforesaid observations does not preclude the Company from complying with any other 
requirements. 

Further, it may be noted that with reference to Section 230 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013 (Act), read with Rule 
8 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules 2016 (Company Rules) and Section 
66 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Company Rules wherein pursuant to an Order passed by the  Hon’ble 
National Company Law Tribunal, a Notice of  the proposed scheme of compromise or arrangement filed under 
sections 230-232 or Section 66 of  the Companies Act 2013 as the case may be is required to be served upon 
the Exchange seeking representations or objections if any. 

In this regard, with a view to have a better transparency in processing the aforesaid notices served upon the 
Exchange, the Exchange has already introduced an online system of serving such Notice along with the 
relevant documents of the proposed schemes through the BSE Listing Centre. 

Any service of notice under Section 230 (5) or Section 66 of the Companies Act 2013 seeking Exchange’s
representations or objections if any, would be accepted and processed through the Listing Centre only and 



BSE - INTERNAL 

no physical filings would be accepted. You may please refer to circular dated February 26, 2019 issued to the 
company. 

Yours faithfully, 
Sd/-    Sd/- 

Prasad Bhide                                                                                 Tanmayi Lele 
Senior Manager                                                                              Assistant Manager



Report on Complaints as on August 24, 2022 
Part A 

Sr.
No.

Particulars Number

1. Number of complaints received directly 15

2. Number of complaints forwarded by Stock Exchange -

3. Total Number of complaints/comments received (1+2) 15

4. Number of complaints resolved 15

5. Number of complaints pending 0

Part B 
Sr.
No Name of complainant Date of complaint Status

1. Sandeep Devendra Rajani 08-07-2022 Resolved 
2. Vinay Kumar Taparia 05-07-2022 Resolved 
3. Vijay Rameshwarlal Nayyar 06-07-2022 Resolved 

4.

Sanjay Kumar Khemka (jointly with shareholders mentioned below) 

06-07-2022 Resolved 
     Pensol Exports Pvt. Ltd. 
     Pensol Oil Company Private Limited 
     Sanjay Kumar Khemka HUF 
     Bhavna Khemka 

5. Ratika Kataruka 28-06-2022 Resolved 
6. Sangita Kataruka 28-06-2022 Resolved 
7. Rajeev Kataruka 20-06-2022 Resolved 
8. Basudeb Engineering Enterprises Ltd. 28-06-2022 Resolved 
9. Rohit Kataruka 28-06-2022 Resolved 
10. Kanga Financial Services Private Limited 29-06-2022 Resolved 
11. Progressive Distributors Private Limited 06-07-2022 Resolved 
12. Raghav Sarda 22-06-2022 Resolved 

13.
Sneha Vishal Sood (jointly with shareholder mentioned below) 05-07-2022 Resolved 

     Sneha Vishal Sood (Trust) 

14.
Megh Ishwer Manseta (jointly with shareholder mentioned below) 16-06-2022 Resolved 

Kiyomi Anant Talaulicar 

15.

Keshav Garg (jointly with shareholders mentioned below) 20-06-2022 Resolved 

     Kamal Raj Gurnani
     Harjeet Kaur Bhatia
     Kanchan Gupta
     Navin Kumar Gupta



For ADOR FONTECH LIMITED

Sanath Kumar D Rao 
Asst. Company Secretary

August 24, 2022

Sr.
No Name of complainant Date of complaint Status

     Kamlesh Garg
     Prashant Vijaywargi
     Ritu Garg
     Rajiv Garg
     Varun Jugal Vijaywargi
     Gaurav Garg
     Kanwar Maninder Bhatia
     Rajni Bhargava
     Nandita Deshmukh
     Nikhil Gupta
     Akshat Raje
     Suninder Singh Bhatia
     Nidhi Jain
     Ajay Kumar Saboo
     Rohan Anirudha Seolekar
     Amar Saboo
     Kunaal Seolekar
     Kirandeep Mann Kapoor
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Ador Welding Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Ador Welding Limited (‘the Company’), 
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year 
then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies 
and other explanatory information.

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in the manner so 
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified 
under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other 
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 
2023, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the 
year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of 
the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the 
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance 
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the 
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act 
and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these 
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit 
of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of 
the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate 
opinion on these matters.

5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our 
report.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue Recognition

Refer Notes 1(II)(l), 34 and 60 to the financial statements

Revenue from sale of goods (hereinafter referred to as 
“Revenue”) is recognized when control of the products 
being sold is transferred to the customer and when 
there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations.
The timing of revenue recognition is relevant to 
the reported performance of the Company. The 
management considers revenue as a key measure for 
evaluation of performance. There is a risk of revenue 
being recorded before control is transferred.

Our audit procedures, related to revenue recognition, 
included, but were not limited, to the following:

revenue recognition accounting policies in line 
with Ind AS 115 (“Revenue from contracts with 
customers”) and testing thereof.

of Company’s controls (including the automated 
controls) around revenue recognition (including 
rebates / discounts).
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Revenue Recognition

Refer Notes 1(II)(l), 34 and 60 to the financial statements

The Company has three reportable business
segments: i) Consumables ii) Equipment and 
automation; and iii) Flares and Process Equipment 
Division (FPED).
The timing of recognition of revenue in case of sale 
of consumables is when control over the same is 
transferred to the customer, which is mainly upon 
delivery. The performance obligations are fulfilled at 
the time of dispatch, delivery or upon formal customer 
acceptance depending on customer terms i.e., 
performance obligations are satisfied at a point in 
time.
The performance obligations in case of FPED, are 
satisfied over the time, whereas in case of equipment, 
performance obligations are satisfied at a point in 
time.

revenue cut off at year-end by selecting samples 
and verified the same with underlying documents, 
which included shipping documents, loading 
receipt, gate register. We carried out a combination 
of procedures involving inquiry and observation, 
reperformance and inspection of evidence in 
respect of operation of these controls.

the appropriateness of sales return accounted in 
the books by verifying its approval from authorized 
person and goods inward note.

and performed the following procedures.
o  Read, analyzed and identified the performance 

obligations in these contracts.
o Compared these performance obligations with 

that identified and recorded by the Company.
o Considered the terms of the contracts to 

determine the transaction price including any 
variable consideration to verify the transaction 
price used to compute revenue and to 
test the basis of estimation of the variable 
consideration; and

o Determined the allocation of transaction price 
to identified performance obligations in the 
contract.

sales transactions.

samples of revenue transactions recorded during 
the year by verifying the underlying documents, 
which included shipping documents, lorry receipt, 
sales order, approved price list, proper recording in 
ledger of receivables etc.

revenue based on overall revenue recognized, 
customer wise analysis, product wise analysis and 
where appropriate, conducting further enquiries 
and testing.

customers selected and reviewed the reconciling 
items, if any;

statements in accordance with Ind AS 115.
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Indirect tax balances and litigations

Refer Notes 1(II)(r), 13 and 44 to the financial statements

Indirect tax balances and litigations

As at 31 March 2023, the Company has balances 
with indirect tax authorities aggregating to Rs. 2,442 
lakhs (PY Rs. 2,406 lakhs) net of provision Rs. 1,389 lakhs 
(PY 1,353 lakhs) and has contingent liabilities amounting 
Rs. 2,285 lakhs (PY Rs. 2,344 lakhs) pertaining to various 
indirect tax matters pending before appropriate 
authorities. Based on a detailed assessment done 
by the management of recoverability of aforesaid 
balances.

The amounts involved are material and the application 
of accounting principles as given under Ind AS 37, 
Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets, 
in order to determine the amount to be recognised as 
a liability or to be disclosed as a contingent liability, in 
each case, is inherently subjective, and needs careful 
evaluation and judgement to be applied by the 
management.

The eventual outcome of the said legal proceedings 
is dependent on the outcome of future events and 
unexpected adverse outcomes could significantly 
impact the Company’s reported profits and balance 
sheet position.

We considered this as Key audit matter due to the 
materiality of the amounts involved, inherent high 
estimation uncertainty and significant judgements as 
stated above.

process for identification of indirect tax matters that 
are under litigations or involve balances with the 
authorities that are doubtful of recovery, assessment 
of accounting treatment for each such litigation 
identified in accordance with the principles of 
under Ind AS 37, and measurement of amounts 
involved in such litigations and assessments.

effectiveness of key controls around above 
process.

policies in respect of balances, provisions, and 
contingent liabilities to assess compliance with 
accounting standards.

claims as at 31 March 2023 from management 
and reviewed their assessment of the likelihood of 
outflow of economic resources being probable, 
possible or remote in respect of the litigations 
and recoverability of balances with government 
authorities. This involved assessing the probability of 
an unfavourable outcome of a given proceeding 
and testing the computation of amounts involved, 
through inspection of underlying documents and 
communications with the tax authorities.

with respect to long standing balances with 
authorities which have been considered good and 
recoverable as at 31 March 2023.

understanding of the management’s assessment 
of the recoverability, conducted discussions with 
the management, and considered relevant tax 
laws and available precedents to validate the 
conclusions made by the management.

appropriateness of the disclosures made by the 
management in the accompanying financial 
statements.
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Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises 
the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon.

 Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form 
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or 
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we 
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required 
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

7. The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors. The 
Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect 
to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the 
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

8. In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Company 
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

 Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that 
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an 
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when 
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these financial statements.

11. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the Act, we 
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence 
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
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misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

estimates and related disclosures made by management;

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation;

12. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

13. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the 
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

 Other Matter

15. The comparative financial information presented in the accompanying financial statements includes the 
financial information of erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary, Ador Welding Academy Private Limited (‘the transferor 
company’) which has been merged with the Company as explained in Note 64 to the accompanying 
financial statements. Such financial information of the transferor company for the year ended 31 March 
2022 has been audited by the auditor of the transferor company, M/s Phadke & Associates, who had issued 
an unmodified opinion vide their audit report dated 25 April 2023, which have been furnished to us by the 
management and have been relied upon by us for the aforementioned purpose. Our opinion is not modified 
in respect of the matter referred above.

 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

16. As required by section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid 
remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under 
section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
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17. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government 
of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act we give in the Annexure A, a statement on the matters specified 
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

18. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we 
report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge 
and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books;

c) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the 
Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board 
of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2023 from being appointed as a director 
in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
of the Company as on 31 March 2023 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 
separate Report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of 
the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company, as detailed in note 44 to the financial statements, has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position as at 31 March 2023;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were 
any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2023;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023;

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 
59 to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from 
borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or 
in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 
59 to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate 
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 
and
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c. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the management 
representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material misstatement.

v. a. The final dividend paid by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2023 in respect of such 
dividend declared for the previous year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act to the extent it 
applies to payment of dividend.

b. As stated in note 68 to the accompanying financial statements, the Board of Directors of the Company 
have proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 which is subject to the approval of 
the members at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. The dividend declared is in accordance with 
section 123 of the Act to the extent it applies to declaration of dividend.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 requires all companies which use accounting 
software for maintaining their books of account, to use such an accounting software which has a feature of 
audit trail, with effect from the financial year beginning on 1 April 2023 and accordingly, reporting under Rule 
11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) is not applicable for the current financial 
year.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Khushroo B. Panthaky
Partner
Membership No.: 042423
UDIN: 23042423BGWIOH6891

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2023
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Annexure A referred to in Paragraph 17 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date 
to the members of Ador Welding Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 
31 March 2023

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account 
and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report 
that:

(i) (a) (A)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details 
and situation of property, plant and equipment, right of use assets and investment property.

  (B)  The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its property, plant and equipment, right 
of use assets and investment property under which the assets are physically verified in a phased manner 
over a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets. In accordance with this programme, certain property, plant and equipment, 
right of use assets and investment property were verified during the year and no material discrepancies 
were noticed on such verification.

(c)  The title deeds of all the immovable properties including investment properties held by the Company 
(other than properties where the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the lessee) disclosed in note 2 to the financial statements are held in the name of the Company.

(d)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment including Right of Use assets or intangible 
assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami 
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules made 
thereunder.

(ii) (a)  The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the year, 
including inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification 
by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each 
class of inventory were noticed. In respect of inventory lying with third parties, these have substantially 
been confirmed by the third parties.

(b) As disclosed in note 46 to the financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working 
capital limit in excess of Rs 5 crore by banks based on the security of current assets. The quarterly returns/
statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and 
such returns/statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective 
periods which were subject to audit/review, except for the following :
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(Rs. in Lakhs)
Name of 
the Bank

Working 
capital limit 
sanctioned

Nature of 
current assets 

offered as 
security

Quarter Information 
disclosed as 

per return

Information 
as per 

books of 
accounts

Difference

HDFC Bank 10,550 Working 
Capital *

Jun-22 13,792 13,263 529

IDFC Bank 7,500 Working 
Capital *

Jun-22 13,792 13,263 529

HDFC Bank 10,550 Working 
Capital *

Sep-22 13,159 13,244 (85)

IDFC Bank 7,500 Working 
Capital *

Sep-22 13,159 13,244 (85)

HDFC Bank 10,550 Working 
Capital *

Dec-22 14,424 14,424 0

IDFC Bank 7,500 Working 
Capital *

Dec-22 14,424 14,424 0

HDFC Bank 10,550 Working 
Capital *

Mar-23 17,249 17,249 0

IDFC Bank 7,500 Working 
Capital *

Mar-23 17,249 17,249 0

*Working Capital = Inventory + Trade Receivables + Unbilled revenue – Trade Payables

(iii) The Company has not made any investment in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or 
advances in the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships (LLPs) 
or any other parties during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(iv) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of loans and investments made and 
guarantees and security provided by it, as applicable.

(v) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted 
any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 
73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) of section 148 
of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of account 
maintained by the Company pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance 
of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been 
made and maintained However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view 
to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii) (a) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, undisputed statutory dues 
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, sales-tax, 
service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory dues, as 
applicable, have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities by the Company, 
though there have been slight delays in a few cases. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in respect 
thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became 
payable.
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(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred in sub-
clause (a) which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute 
except for the following:

Name of 
the statute

Nature of dues Gross 
Amount 

(Rs. in 
Lakhs)

Amount 
paid 

under 
Protest (Rs. 

in Lakhs)

Period to 
which the 

amount 
relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

Income 
Tax Act, 
1961

Disallowance of 
scientific research 
expenses

62.63 12.55 2013-14 Commissioner of Income-
tax (Appeals)

Addition in Income 
and Disallowance of 
entrance fees and 
subscriptions and 
Restatement Impact

89.88 - 2019-20 Commissioner of Income-
tax (Appeals)

Customs 
Act, 1962

Rejection of refund of 
excess duty paid

45.53 45.53 2016-17 Custom, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

The Central 
Excise Act, 
1944

Additional Liability 
arising due to 
difference in 
assessable value, 
disallowance of 
CENVAT credit 
(including penalty/
interest, if any)

7.72 1 1998-99 Custom, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

2.18 0.96 2006-07 Assistant Commissioner

13.42 - 2008-09 Commissioner-Appeal

899 898.16 April-2012 
to Mar-2017

Custom, Excise and Service 
Tax Appellate Tribunal

Central 
Sales tax 
Act and 
Local Sales 
Tax Acts 
of various 
statues

Additional Liability 
arising due to 
difference in 
assessable value, 
disallowance of 
CENVAT credit 
(including penalty/
interest, if any)

18.07 9.21 1987-1988, 
1992-1993

High court

45.19 35.87 2005-2006 Deputy Commissioner-
Appeals

152.23 5.50 2005-2006 Maharashtra Sales tax 
Tribunal

20.09 - 2004-05 Joint Commissioner-Sales 
Tax

6.88 - 2004-05 Joint Commissioner-Sales 
Tax

7.98 - 2003-04 Joint Commissioner-Sales 
Tax

0.21 - 2003-04 Joint Commissioner-Sales 
Tax

327.42 - 2009-10 Joint Commissioner (VAT)

3.74 - 2011-12 Joint Commissioner (VAT)

0.24 - 2012-13 Joint Commissioner

76.27 - 2014-15 Joint Commissioner (VAT)

144.77 - 2015-16 Joint Commissioner (VAT)
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Name of 
the statute

Nature of dues Gross 
Amount 

(Rs. in 
Lakhs)

Amount 
paid 

under 
Protest (Rs. 

in Lakhs)

Period to 
which the 

amount 
relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

14.90 0.74 July’2017 to 
March’2019

Commissioner-Appeal

159.60 - 2016-17 Joint Commissioner (VAT)

9.16 - 2016-17 Commissioner-Appeal

21.99 - 2017-18 Joint Commissioner (VAT)

8.66 - 2017-18 Joint Commissioner-
Appeals

93.40 6.65 2017-18 Joint Commissioner-
Appeals

72.83 3.50 2017-18 Joint Commissioner-
Appeals

11.10 - 2016-17 Commissioner-Appeal

121.87 41.83 2016-17 Deputy Commissioner 
(Appeals)

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or disclosed as 
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) which have not 
been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment 
of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received from the 
management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report that the Company has 
not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, money raised by way of 
term loans were applied for the purposes for which these were obtained.

(d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall 
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term 
basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any subsidiaries, 
associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(e) and clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company.

(x) (a)  The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments), during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to 
the Company.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the 
records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of 
shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, reporting under 
clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(xi) (a)  To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud 
by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period 
covered by our audit.

(b)  According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the 
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed 
by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(c)  According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the 
management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during 
the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered 
into by the Company with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, 
where applicable. Further, the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial 
statements, as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

(xiv)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has an 
internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act which is commensurate with the size 
and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the period 
under audit.

(xv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash 
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable 
to the Company.

(xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a),(b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately 
preceding financial year.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing 
and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information 
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and 
management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the 
audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance 
sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is 
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance 
that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by 
the company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards 
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Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to other than ongoing projects as at end of the current financial 
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred the remaining 
unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the 
Act, in respect of ongoing project, within a period of 30 days from the end of financial year to a special 
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the Act, except for the 
following:

Financial year* Amount unspent on 
CSR activities for 

“On going Projects”

Amount transferred 
to Special Account 
within 30 days from 

the end of the 
Financial Year

Amount 
Transferred after 

the due date

Date of Transfer

FY 20-21 9.40 - 10.50 24-May-2021

(xxi) The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial 
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under 
this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Khushroo B. Panthaky
Partner
Membership No.: 042423
UDIN: 23042423BGWIOH6891

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2023
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Ador 
Welding Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the 
financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

1. In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Ador Welding Limited (‘the Company’) as at and 
for the year ended 31 March 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, 
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection 
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation 
of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial 
Statements

3. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on 
Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) prescribed under Section 143(10) of 
the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 
and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note’) 
issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects.

4. Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal 
financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend 
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

5. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

6. A company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 
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financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain 
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with 
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s 
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that 
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

8. In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2023, based on the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Khushroo B. Panthaky
Partner
Membership No.: 042423
UDIN: 23042423BGWIOH6891

Place: Mumbai
Date: 30 May 2023
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(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars Notes As at

31 March 2023
As at

31 March 2022
(Restated)^

Assets
(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property, plant and equipment 2 10,738 10,471
(b) Right-of-use asset 3 484 481
(c) Capital work-in-progress 4 151 706
(d) Investment property 5 1,045 729
(e) Intangible assets 6 47 66
(f) Intangible assets under development 7 41 4
(g) Financial assets

(i) Investment 8 269 -
(ii) Loans 9 22 30
(iii) Other financial assets 10 767 927

(h) Non-current income tax assets (net) 11 1,115 1,192
(i) Deferred tax assets (net) 12 464 268
(j) Other non-current assets 13 1,654 1,394

Total non-current assets 16,797 16,268
(2) Current assets

(a) Inventories 14 11,621 8,997
(b) Financial assets

(i) Investments 15 1,759 1,988
(ii) Trade receivables 16 12,517 9,315
(iii) Cash and cash equivalents 17 595 661
(iv) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalent 18 94 102
(v) Loans 19 38 38
(vi) Other financial assets 20 50 92

(c) Other current assets 21 1,617 1,797
28,291 22,990

(d) Assets classified as held for sale 22 80 7
Total current assets 28,371 22,997

Total Assets 45,168 39,265

Equity and liabilities
 Equity

(a) Equity share capital 23 1,360 1,360
(b) Other equity 30,991 26,832

Total equity 32,351 28,192
Liabilities
(1) Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 24 73 60
(ii) Lease liabilities 47 84 127
(iii) Other financial liabilities 25 16 18

(b) Provisions 26 615 469
(d) Other non-current liabilities 27 6 3

Total non-current liabilities 794 677
(2) Current liabilities

(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings 28 1,513 8
(ii) Lease liabilities 47 58 26
(iii) Trade payables 29

Total outstanding dues to micro and small enterprises 1,366 192
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro and small 
enterprises

5,942 7,559

(iv) Other financial liabilities 30 1,346 996
(b) Other current liabilities 31 809 923
(c) Provisions 32 660 651
(d) Current tax liabilities, (net) 33 329 41

Total current liabilities 12,023 10,396
Total equity and liabilities 45,168 39,265

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information    1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
^Restated pursuants to Merger of subsidiary company (Refer note 64). 
This is the balance sheet referred to in our report of even date.

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. Panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia Aditya T. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
Partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - Corp. Admin, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

Executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30 May 2023 Date : 30 May 2023
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Notes Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

 (Restated)^
I.  Income

(a) Revenue from operations 34 77,676 66,148
(b) Other income 35 667 548

Total Income 78,343 66,696
II. Expenses

(a) Cost of raw materials and components consumed 36 51,065 42,125
(b) Purchase of stock-in-trade 37 2,643 5,850
(c) Changes in inventories of finished goods, stock-in-trade and 

 work-in-progress
38 (1,396) (990)

(d) Employee benefits expenses 39 5,685 4,866
(e) Finance costs 40 236 372
(f) Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,3,5,6 1,161 1,090
(g) Other expenses 41 10,958 8,460

Total Expenses 70,352 61,773
III. Profit before exceptional items and tax (I-II) 7,991 4,923
IV. Exceptional items (net) (expenses) / income 62 (80) 898

V. Profit before tax (III-IV) 7,911 5,821
VI. Tax expense / (credit) 42

(a) Current tax 2,174 1,473
(b) Deferred tax credit (173) (168)
(c) Tax pertains to earlier years (19) -
(d) MAT Credit Entitlement - 14

Total tax expense 1,982 1,319
VII. Profit for the year (V-VI) 5,929 4,502
VIII. Other comprehensive income 43

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to statement of profit and 
 loss

(91) (81)

(b) Income tax relating to above items 23 20
Total other comprehensive loss (net) (68) (61)
IX. Total comprehensive income for the year (VII+VIII) 5,861 4,441
X. Earnings per equity share 56

Basic and diluted earnings / (losses) per share (Face value per
share Rs. 10)

43.60 33.10

Summary of significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information

1

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
^Restated pursuants to Merger of subsidiary company (Refer note 64)
This is the statement of profit and loss referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. Panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia Aditya T. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
Partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - Corp. Admin, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

Executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30 May 2023 Date : 30 May 2023
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023
(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2023 

Year ended
31 March 2022 

(Restated)^
(A) Cash flow from operating activities

Profit before tax 7,911 5,821
Adjustment for:
Fair value adjustments relating to
- Financial assets at amortised cost (4) 1
Provision / liabilities no longer required now written 
back

(61) (70)

Depreciation and amortisation expense 1,161 1,090
Bad debts written off 29 24
Expected Credit Loss 492 106
Inventory written off 126 38
Property. plant and equipment written off 29 21
Gain on derecognition of ROU and Lease liability (29) -
Items considered separately:
Finance costs 220 359
Surplus on sale of investments (49) -
Interest expense on lease liability 15 13
(Profit)/loss on sale of property, plant & equipment (11) 10
Fair value change of financial asset measured at 
FVTPL

9 (52)

Interest income (116) (86)
Rental income (126) (122)
Exchange gain on revaluation of foreign currency 
monetary item

(1) -

Exceptional items (Refer note 62) 80 1,764 (898) 434
Operating profit before working capital changes 9,675 6,255
Adjustments for changes in working capital
Inventories (2,750) (2,789)
Trade receivables (3,717) 629
Loans and Other receivables 166 (249)
Trade payables (382) (229)
Liabilities and Provisions 165 (6,518) 458 (2,180)
Cash generated from operating activities 3,157 4,075
Income tax paid (1,790) (1,436)
Net cash generated from operating activities 1,367 2,639

(B) Cash flow from investing activities
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 
(including capital work-in-progress, intangible assets 
under development and capital advances)

(1,475) (1,733)

Purchase of investments (680) (2,016)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 123 1,853
Advance received against proposed sale of property - 14
Proceeds from sale of investments 680 1,149
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(Rs. in lakhs)

Particulars Year ended
31 March 2023 

Year ended
31 March 2022 

(Restated)^
Interest received 97 85
Rental received 129 130
Increase/ (decrease) in fixed deposits 160 (27)
Net cash used in investing activities (966) (545)

(C) Cash flow from financing activities
Finance cost (220) (375)
Finance cost paid on lease liabilities (15) (13)
Repayment of lease liability (49) (17)
Repayment of borrowings (11) (2,802)
Dividend paid (1,700) -
Proceeds from borrowings 1,528 70
Net cash used in financing activities (467) (3,137)

(D) Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents 
(A+B+C)

(66) (1,043)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the 
year

661 1,704

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
[Refer note 17]

595 661

Notes to the cash flow statement
(a) The statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting 

Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.
(b) Components of cash and cash equivalents:

(Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022
Cash on hand 5 5
Balances with banks in current accounts 590 656

Total 595 661

Summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information  1
The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements
^Restated pursuants to Merger of subsidiary company (Refer note 64)

This is the cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. Panthaky Vinayak M. Bhide Surya kant Sethia Aditya T. Malkani N. Malkani Nagpal
Partner
Membership No. 042423

Head - Corp. Admin, 
Legal and Company 
Secretary

Chief Financial Officer Managing Director
DIN : 01585637

Executive Chairman
DIN : 00031985

Place : Mumbai Place : Mumbai
Date : 30 May 2023 Date : 30 May 2023



Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
11th Floor, Tower II,
One International Center,
S B Marg, Prabhadevi (W),
Mumbai - 400013
Maharashtra, India
T +91 22 6626 2699
F +91 22 6626 2601

Chartered Accountants

Offices in Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered 
with limited liability with identification 
number AAC-2085 and has its registered 
office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Outer 
Circle, New Delhi, 110001, India

Independent Auditor’s Review Report on Unaudited Quarterly Financial Results of the Company 
pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (as amended)

To the Board of Directors of Ador Welding Limited 

1. We have reviewed the accompanying statement of standalone unaudited financial results                          
(‘the Statement’) of Ador Welding Limited (‘the Company’) for the quarter ended 30 June 2023 being 
submitted by the Company pursuant to the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI                          
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended)                          
(‘Listing Regulations’).

2. The Statement, which is the responsibility of the Company’s management and approved by the 
Company’s Board of Directors, has been prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 
principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standard 34, Interim Financial Reporting (‘Ind AS 34’), 
prescribed under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’), and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India and is in compliance with the presentation and disclosure requirements of
Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the Statement 
based on our review.

3. We conducted our review of the Statement in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagements 
(SRE) 2410, Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity, 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. A review of interim financial information 
consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and accounting matters, and 
applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit 
conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, and 
consequently, does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant 
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

4. Based on our review conducted as above, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe 
that the accompanying Statement, prepared in accordance with the recognition and measurement 
principles laid down in Ind AS 34, prescribed under section 133 of the Act, and other accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, has not disclosed the information required to be disclosed in 
accordance with the requirements of Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended), including the manner in which it is to be disclosed, or 
that it contains any material misstatement.
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Ador Welding Limited 
Independent Auditor’s Review Report on Unaudited Quarterly Financial Results of the Company 
pursuant to the Regulation 33 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 (as amended)

`

Chartered Accountants 

Offices in Bengaluru, Chandigarh, Chennai, Gurugram, Hyderabad, Kochi, Kolkata, Mumbai, New Delhi, Noida and Pune

Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered 
with limited liability with identification 
number AAC-2085 and has its registered 
office at L-41, Connaught Circus, Outer 
Circle, New Delhi, 110001, India

5. The comparative financial information presented in the accompanying financial results includes the 
financial information of erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary, Ador Welding Academy Private Limited                        
(‘the transferor company’) which has been merged with the Company as explained in Note 4 to the 
accompanying financial results. Such financial information of the transferor company for the quarter 
ended 30 June 2022, has been reviewed by the auditor of the transferor company,                          
M/s Phadke & Associates, who had issued an unmodified conclusions vide their review report dated                
25 July 2022, which have been furnished to us by the management and have been relied upon by us for 
the aforementioned purpose.  

Our conclusion is not modified in respect of the matter referred above.  

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP  
Chartered Accountants 
Firm Registration No:001076N/N500013 

Khushroo B. Panthaky 
Partner    
Membership No:042423 

UDIN:23042423BGWIVR1675

Place: Mumbai 
Date:  02 August 2023   
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Year ended
30 June 2023 31 March 2023 30 June 2022

(Restated)^
 31 March 2023 

(Unaudited) (Refer note 7) (Unaudited) (Audited)
1 Income

Revenue from operations 18,963                            23,548                            15,788                            77,676                         
Other income 302                                 124                                 203                                 667                              
Total income 19,265                            23,672                            15,991                            78,343                         

2 Expenses

Cost of raw materials and components consumed 12,728                            14,411                            11,545                            51,065                         
Purchases of stock-in-trade 1,452                              584                                 653                                 2,643                           

(1,190)                             634                                 (1,767)                             (1,396)                          
Employee benefits expense 1,701                              1,496                              1,364                              5,685                           
Finance costs 71                                   69                                   41                                   236                              
Depreciation and amortisation expense 334                                 305                                 278                                 1,161                           
Other expenses 2,665                              3,245                              2,367                              10,958                         
Total expenses 17,761                            20,744                            14,481                            70,352                         

3 Profit before exceptional items and tax (1-2) 1,504                              2,928                             1,510                              7,991                           

4 Exceptional items (net) Gain / (Loss) (Refer note 3) -                                 66                                   (125)                                (80)                               
5 Profit before tax (3-4) 1,504                              2,994                             1,385                              7,911                           
6 Income tax expenses /(credit)

   Current tax 368                                 825                                 406                                 2,174                           
   Deferred tax (credit)/charge 12                                   (67)                                  (62)                                  (173)                             
   Tax pertains to earlier years -                                 (19)                                  -                                 (19)                               
Total tax expenses / (credit) (net) 380                                739                                344                                1,982                           

7 Net Profit for the period / year (5-6) 1,124                              2,255                             1,041                              5,929                           

8 Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year /period (net of tax)

Items not to be reclassified subsequently to profit or (loss)
-                                 (13)                                  -                                 (91)                               

- Income tax effect on above -                                 3                                     -                                 23                                
9 Total comprehensive income for the year / period (after tax) 1,124                              2,245                             1,041                              5,861                           

10 Paid-up equity share capital (Face value of Rs. 10 per share) 1,360                              1,360                              1,360                              1,360                           

11 Other equity (excluding revaluation reserve Rs. Nil) -                                 -                                 -                                 30,991                         

12 Earnings per share (EPS) (net of tax) (in Rs.)

Basic and diluted EPS (not annualised) 8.26                               16.58                              7.65                               43.60                           

 (See accompanying notes to the financials results)

^Restated pursuants to Merger of subsidiary company (Refer note 4)

 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 

 - Gain/(loss) on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation 

ADOR WELDING LIMITED

Regd. Office: Ador House, 6, K.Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001-16 CIN : L70100MH1951PLC008647

Statement of Unaudited Financial Results for the Quarter ended 30 June 2023

(Rs. in lakhs)

 Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Quarter ended



ADOR WELDING LIMITED

Regd. Office: Ador House, 6, K.Dubash Marg, Fort, Mumbai - 400 001-16 CIN : L70100MH1951PLC008647

Year ended
30 June 2023 31 March 2023 30 June 2022

(Restated)^
31 March 2023

(Unaudited) (Refer note 7) (Unaudited) (Audited)
Segmentwise revenue, results, assets, liabilities and capital employed

1 Segment revenue 

Consumables 14,492                            18,737                            12,138                            61,490                         
Equipment and automation 3,627                              3,593                              2,274                              11,535                         
Flares & Process Equipment Division 876                                 1,295                              1,393                              4,779                           
Less: Inter segment revenue (32)                                  (77)                                  (17)                                  (128)                             

Total revenue from operations 18,963                            23,548                            15,788                            77,676                         

2 Segment results 

Consumables 2,016                              2,994                              1,837                              8,876                           
Equipment and automation 142                                 290                                 69                                   772                              
Flares & Process Equipment Division (132)                                127                                 200                                 486                              
Total 2,026                             3,411                              2,106                              10,134                         

Less:

Finance costs (unallocable) (56)                                  (61)                                  (28)                                  (182)                             
Other unallocable expenses net of unallocable income (466)                                (422)                                (568)                                (1,961)                          

     Profit before exceptional items and tax 1,504                              2,928                             1,510                              7,991                           

Exceptional items (net) Gain / (Loss)

Consumables -                                 -                                 (125)                                (146)                             
Equipment and automation -                                 -                                 -                                 -                               
Flares & Process Equipment Division -                                 -                                 -                                 -                               
Other unallocable expenses net of unallocable income -                                 66                                   -                                 66                                
Total Exceptional items (net) Gain / (Loss) (Refer note 3) -                                 66                                  (125)                               (80)                              

Total Profit before tax 1,504                              2,994                             1,385                              7,911                           

3 Segment assets

Consumables 27,100                            25,184                            23,920                            25,184                         
Equipment and automation 10,252                            9,925                              7,739                              9,925                           
Flares & Process Equipment Division 4,211                              4,435                              4,426                              4,435                           
Assets classified as held for sale (unallocable) 25                                   80                                   -                                 80                                

Total segment assets 46,984                            45,168                            40,886                            45,168                         

4 Segment liabilities

Consumables 6,092                              5,375                              5,595                              5,375                           
Equipment and automation 2,509                              2,677                              2,149                              2,677                           
Flares & Process Equipment Division 1,867                              2,016                              2,083                              2,016                           
Unallocable corporate liabilities 3,043                              2,749                              1,811                              2,749                           

Total segment liabilities 13,511                            12,817                            11,638                            12,817                         

5 Capital employed

Consumables 21,008                            19,809                            18,325                            19,809                         
Equipment and automation 7,743                              7,248                              5,590                              7,248                           
Flares & Process Equipment Division 2,344                              2,419                              2,343                              2,419                           
Unallocable corporate assets net of unallocable corporate liabilities 2,378                                 2,875                                 2,990                                 2,875                              

Total capital employed 33,473                            32,351                            29,248                            32,351                         

 (See accompanying notes to the financials results)
^Restated pursuants to Merger of subsidiary company (Refer note 4)

Statement of Unaudited Segment Information for the Quarter ended 30 June 2023
(Rs. in lakhs)

 Sr. 
No. 

Particulars Quarter ended



Notes to the financial results:

1

2

(Rs. in lakhs)
3 Year ended

30 June 2023 31 March 2023 30 June 2022
(Restated)^

31 March 2023

Impairment in the value of the wire manufacturing facility [Refer note a below] -                           -                                 (125)                               (146)                         
Profit on sale of Flat [Refer note b below] -                           66                                  -                                 66                             

-                           66                                 (125)                               (80)                           

Notes:

4

Table 1 Restatements – Statement of profit and loss (Rs. in lakhs)
Particulars

30 June 2022 30 June 2022
Reported Restated

(1) Total income 15,991                    15,991                   
(2) Total expenses 14,476                    14,481                   
(3) Profit before exceptional items and tax (1-2) 1,515                      1,510                     
(4) Exceptional items (net) Gain / (Loss) (125)                        (125)                       
(5) Profit before tax (3-4) 1,390                      1,385                     
(6) Income tax expenses /(credit)
   Current tax 406                         406                        
   Deferred tax (62)                          (62)                         

 Total tax expenses / (credit) (net) 344                        344                       
(7) Net Profit /(Loss) for the period (5-6) 1,046                      1,041                     

5

6

7

8

For ADOR WELDING LIMITED

A. T. Malkani
Mumbai MANAGING DIRECTOR
02 August 2023 DIN : 01585637

The Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on 31 May, 2022, approved the Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) of Ador Fontech Limited (“Transferor Company” or “ADFL”) with Ador Welding Company
(“Transferee Company” or “AWLPL”) and their respective shareholders, under the provisions of Section 230 to 232 of the Companies Act 2013. The Company had obtained necessary NOCs from the Stock exchanges and subsequently filled
appilication with NCLT. The NCLT Mumbai bench has passed order on 18 May, 2023 wherein directed the Company to convene the meeting of the Shareholders on 10 August, 2023, dispensed with convening the meeting of the Secured
Creditors and issue notices to the Unsecured Creditors of value - Rs. 1.00 Lakh and above.

The Company had filed an application, with / before the Bureau of Indian Standards (BIS) Authorities, for compounding of an alleged Offence under Section 33 of BIS Act, 2016 on 05 May, 2023. The Company received an order dated 15
June, 2023 allowing the Compounding application, subject to payment of compounding amount of Rs. 36.43 Crore, under the BIS Act 2016 and  BIS Rules, 2018.

As the Compounding order was unfair and not reasonable, the Company filed an appeal against the order before / with the Director General of BIS on 28 June, 2023 and also filed a Writ Petition in the Hon’ble Bombay High Court and got a
stay, till 30 August, 2023, on payment of the said compounding amount, since BIS order was unreasonable and not reasoned. Hence no provision has been made towards compounding amount in the books as of 30 June, 2023, as the final
/exact / appropriate amount of compounding is yet to be determined.

The figures for the quarter ended 31 March 2023 are the balancing figures between the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 and the unaudited published year to date figutres upto 31 December 2022 on which
auditors had performed a limited review.

Previous periods' / year's figures have been regrouped or reclassified wherever necessary.

Total 

a) During the previous year, the Company had provided Rs. 146 lakhs towards impairment in the carrying value of one of the manufacturing facility of wires ( For quarter ended 30 June 2022 - 125 lakhs and quarter ended 31 December 2022 -
21 lakhs).The same had been shown under exceptional items.

b) During the previous year, the Company had sold partly property situated at Kochi and the profit on sale had been recognised as an exceptional item.

Merger of subsidiary company (Ador Welding Academy Private Limited)

As a part of reorganization of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company (Company is one of India’s leading player in the field of Welding Products, Technologies and Services) and its wholly owned subsidiary, Ador Welding 
Academy Private Limited (AWAPL) (engaged in providing training in respect of welding activity) have in their respective board meetings held on 28 May 2021 unanimously approved the proposal for the amalgamation of AWAPL with the 
Company, subject to all the necessary statutory / regulatory approvals. Necessary notices are filed with the statutory & regulatory authorities.
 
The Scheme of Amalgamation ('The Scheme') for merger of AWAPL with the Company has been approved by the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench under Section 230 to Section 232 of Chapter XV of the Companie
Act, 2013 on 03 February 2023 the Scheme has become effective from appointed date i.e., 1 April 2021. The merger has been accounted under the ‘pooling of interests’ method in accordance with Appendix C of Ind AS 103 'Business 
Combinations' and comparatives have been restated for merger from the beginning of the preceding year i.e.1 April 2021. Accordingly, the previous quarter numbers are restated as follows :-

Quarter ended

The above unaudited financial results have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and then approved by the Board of Directors at their respective meetings held on 02 August 2023. 

The above unaudited financial results have been prepared in accordance with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognised accounting
practices and policies, to the extent applicable.

Exceptional items

Quarter ended



REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ADOR FONTECH LIMITED (THE 

“COMPANY”) IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT 2013, AT ITS MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 31ST MAY 2022 AT ADOR 

HOUSE 6K DUBASH MARG, FORT, MUMBAI 400 001 – 16.

1. The Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) of Ador Fontech Limited (“Transferor 

Company” or “ADFL”) with Ador Welding Limited (“Transferee Company” or “AWL”) and their 

respective shareholders under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 

(“Act”) (“the Scheme”), provides for the amalgamation of Ador Fontech Limited (“Transferor 

Company”) with Ador Welding Limited (“Transferee Company”) (Transferor Company and 

Transferee Company hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Companies”).

2. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 31st May 2022 approved the Scheme.

3. As per Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, a report is required to be adopted by the Directors of the 

Company explaining effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, promoter and non-promoter 

shareholders and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) laying out, in particular, the share exchange 

ratio, specifying any special valuation difficulties.

4. Following documents were placed before the Board:

(i)        Draft Scheme, duly initialled by the Director / Company Secretary of the Company for the 

purpose of identification;

(ii)        Valuation Report dated 31st May, 2022, issued by Mr. Niranjan Kumar, a Registered Valuer 

(Securities or Financial Assets) IBBI Registration No. – IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137), for the 

determination of Share Exchange Ratio (as defined hereunder), under the draft Scheme 

(‘Valuation Report’);

(iii) Fairness Opinion dated 31st May, 2022, prepared by Fedex Securities Private Limited, a SEBI 

registered Category-I Merchant Banker, confirming that the Share Exchange Ratios in the 

Valuation Report are fair to the Companies and their respective shareholders and creditors

(‘Fairness Opinion’); 

ANNEXURE-G1



(iv) The Certificate dated 31st May, 2022, from M/s. Praveen & Madan, Chartered Accountants,

Statutory auditors of the Company, pursuant to SEBI Circular, certifying that the accounting 

treatment proposed in the draft Scheme is in compliance with the accounting standards 

prescribed under Section 133 of the Act, read with applicable rules and / or the accounting 

standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and other generally 

accepted accounting standards and principles (‘Auditor’s Certificate’);

(v)        The Report dated 31st May, 2022, of the Audit Committee of the Board of the Company, 

recommending the Scheme to the Board of the Company, after taking into consideration, inter 

alia, the Valuation Report, the Share Exchange Ratio, the Fairness Opinion(s), and the 

Auditor’s Certificate, and noting that the draft Scheme is not detrimental to the interest of the 

shareholders of the Company (‘Audit Committee Report’); 

(vi) The Report dated 31st May, 2022, of the Committee of the Independent Directors of the 

Company, recommending the Scheme to the Board of the Company, after taking into 

consideration, inter-alia, the Valuation Report, the Share Exchange Ratio, the Fairness 

Opinion and the Auditor’s Certificate, and noting that the draft Scheme is not detrimental to 

the interest of the shareholders of the Company (‘Independent Directors’ Report’); and

Considering all other relevant documents placed before the Board of the Company, approval of the 

Board of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Scheme, a copy of which has been tabled at 

the meeting duly initialed by the Director / Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of 

identification, for inter alia:

(a) Amalgamation of Transferor Company into and with the Transferee Company in the 

manner set out in the Scheme (Part II of the Scheme); and

(b) Various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected therewith.

5. Fair Valuation Report / Share Entitlement Ratio Report

Following are the important extract / observations of the Fair Valuation Report / Share Entitlement 

Ratio Report dated 31st May, 2022 issued by Mr. Niranjan Kumar (Registered Valuer):

Conclusion

“5 (Five) equity shares of AWL having a face value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up shall be issued for 
every 46 (Forty-six) equity shares held in ADFL having face value of INR 2/- each fully paid up.”



6. Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders (promoter and non-promoter) of the Company: 

The Company has only one class of equity shareholders. There will be no impact of the Scheme,

except to the extent of shares held by them in the Company.

Clause 12.1 of the Scheme provides that upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of 

the transfer and vesting of Transferor Company in the Transferee Company, pursuant to Part II of this 

Scheme and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall, without any 

further application, act, deed, consent, acts, instrument or deed, issue and allot equity shares ("New 

Shares"), on a proportionate basis to each shareholder of the Transferor Company, whose name is 

recorded in the register of members, as member of the Transferor Company, as on the Record Date, as 

follows:

"5 (Five) equity shares of AWL having a face value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up shall be issued for 

every 46 (Forty-six) equity shares held in ADFL having a face value of INR 2/- each fully paid-up".

7. Effect of the Scheme on the KMP of the Company:

There will be no impact of the Scheme on the KMP of the Company. Further, none of the KMPs have 

any interest in the Scheme, except to the extent of shares held by them, if any, in the Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

A T Malkani
     Chairman
      DIN: 1585637



ADOR WELDING LIMITED

REPORT ADOPTED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF ADOR WELDING LIMITED (THE 
“COMPANY”) IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 232(2)(C) OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013, AT ITS MEETING HELD ON TUESDAY, 31ST MAY 2022 AT 
REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY SITUATED AT ADOR HOUSE, 6, K. DUBASH 
MARG, FORT, MUMBAI – 400 001-16 

1. The Scheme of Amalgamation (Merger by Absorption) of Ador Fontech Limited (“Transferor Company” 
or “ADFL”) with Ador Welding Limited (“Transferee Company” or “AWL”) and their respective 
shareholders under the provisions of Sections 230 to 232 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) (“the 
Scheme”), provides for the amalgamation of Ador Fontech Limited (“Transferor Company”) with Ador 
Welding Limited (“Transferee Company”) (Transferor Company and Transferee Company hereinafter 
collectively referred to as the “Companies”). 

2. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 31st May, 2022 approved the Scheme. 

3. As per Section 232(2)(c) of the Act, a report is required to be adopted by the Directors of the Company 
explaining effect of the Scheme on each class of shareholders, promoter and non-promoter shareholders 
and Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) laying out, in particular, the share exchange ratio, specifying 
any special valuation difficulties. 

4. Following documents were placed before the Board:  
(i) Draft Scheme, duly initialled by the Director / Company Secretary of the Company for the 

purpose of identification; 
(ii) Valuation Report dated 31st May, 2022, issued by Mr. Niranjan Kumar, a Registered Valuer 

(Securities or Financial Assets) IBBI Registration No. – IBBI/RV/06/2018/10137), for the 
determination of Share Exchange Ratio (as defined hereunder) under the draft Scheme 
(‘Valuation Report’);  

(iii) Fairness Opinion dated 31st May, 2022, prepared by Systematix Corporate Services Limited, a 
SEBI registered Category-I Merchant Banker, confirming that the Share Exchange Ratios in the 
Valuation Report are fair to the Companies and their respective shareholders and creditors 
(‘Fairness Opinion’);  

(iv) The Certificate dated 31st May, 2022, from Walker Chandiok & Co LLP Chartered Accountants, 
statutory auditors of the Company, pursuant to SEBI Circular, certifying that the accounting 
treatment proposed in the draft Scheme is in compliance with the accounting standards prescribed 
under Section 133 of the Act, read with applicable rules and / or the accounting standards issued 
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and other generally accepted accounting 
standards and principles (‘Auditor’s Certificate’); 

(v) The Report dated 31st May, 2022, of the Audit Committee of the Board of the Company, 
recommending the Scheme to the Board of the Company, after taking into consideration, 

, the Valuation Report, the Share Exchange Ratio, the Fairness Opinion(s), and the Auditor’s 

ANNEXURE-G1ANNEXURE-G2



ADOR WELDING LIMITED

Certificate, and noting that the draft Scheme is not detrimental to the interest of the shareholders 
of the Company (‘Audit Committee Report’);  

(vi) The Report dated 31st May, 2022, of the Committee of the Independent Directors of the Company, 
recommending the Scheme to the Board of the Company, after taking into consideration, 

, the Valuation Report, the Share Exchange Ratio, the Fairness Opinion and the Auditor’s 
Certificate, and noting that the draft Scheme is not detrimental to the interest of the shareholders 
of the Company (‘Independent Directors’ Report’);  

Considering all other relevant documents placed before the Board of the Company, approval of the Board 
of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Scheme, a copy of which has been tabled at the meeting 
duly initialed by the Director / Company Secretary of the Company for the purpose of identification, for 

(a) Amalgamation of Transferor Company into and with the Transferee Company, in the manner set 
out in the Scheme (Part II of the Scheme); and 

(b) Various other matters consequential or otherwise integrally connected therewith. 

5. Fair Valuation Report / Share Entitlement Ratio Report 
Following are the important extract / observations of the Fair Valuation Report Report dated 31st May, 
2022 issued by Mr. Niranjan Kumar (Registered Valuer): 

“5 (Five) equity shares of AWL having a face value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up shall be issued for 
every 46 (Forty-six) equity shares held in ADFL having face value of INR 2/- each fully paid up.”  

6. Effect of the Scheme on the equity shareholders (promoter and non-promoter) of the Company: 
The Company has only one class of equity shareholders. There will be no impact of the Scheme, except 
to the extent of shares held by them in the Company. 

Clause 12.1 of the Scheme provides that upon the Scheme coming into effect and in consideration of the 
transfer and vesting of Transferor Company in the Transferee Company, pursuant to Part II of this Scheme 
and subject to the provisions of this Scheme, the Transferee Company shall, without any further 
application, act, deed, consent, acts, instrument or deed, issue and allot equity shares ("New Shares"), on 
a proportionate basis to each shareholder of the Transferor Company, whose name is recorded in the 
register of members, as member of the Transferor Company, as on the Record Date, as follows: 

 "5 (Five) equity shares of AWL having a face value of INR 10/- each fully paid-up shall be issued for 
every 46 (Forty-six) equity shares held in ADFL having a face value of INR 2/- each fully paid-up



ADOR WELDING LIMITED

7. Effect of the Scheme on the KMP of the Company:
There will be no impact of the Scheme on the KMP of the Company. Further, none of the KMPs have 
any interest in the Scheme, except to the extent of shares held by them, if any, in the Company. 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of ADOR WELDING LIMITED 

Sd/- 

NINOTCHKA MALKANI NAGPAL 
EXECUTIVE CHAIRMAN 

Date: 31st May, 2022
Place: Mumbai


